
Meeting of the
Board of Commissioners

TUKWILA POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT

De' Sean Quinn, President of the Board Board Members: / Joe Duffie / Dennis Robertson

Kate Kruller, Clerk of the Board / Allan Ekberg
Verna Seal / Kathy Hougardy

Wednesday, October 22, 2014, 5: 30 PM
Tukwila City Hall Council Chambers Resolution #22

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / ROLL CALL

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

3. CONSENT

AGENDA

a. Approval of minutes: 9/23/ 14 ( Special Mtg.), 9/24/ 14 ( Regular Mtg.) and 10/ 9/ 14
Special Mtg.) 

b. Approval of vouchers. 

4. REPORTS a. Commissioners

b. Executive Director

c. Executive Director Committee

d. Operator

e. Financial & Support Services

f. Tukwila Pool Advisory Committee

Pg. 3

Pg. 5

pg. 9

Pg. 13

Pg. 21

5. BUSINESS ITEMS a. Ad Hoc Committees updates

b. Logistics Committee Report and Proposed Employee Handbook

c. Budget Committee Revised Transitional Budget for 2014

d. Hearing on Proposed 2015 Budget

e. Hearing on Proposed General Tax Levy and 1% Increase

f. Resolution designating the TPMPD Treasurer as of January 1, 2015

g. Next meeting is November 13, 2014. 

Pg. 29

Pg. 31

Pg. 87

Pg. 91

Pg. 97

Pg. 105

6. MISCELLANEOUS

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION

8. ADJOURNMENT

Tukwila City Hall is wheelchair accessible. 
Reasonable accommodations are available at public hearings with advance notice to the

City Clerk's Office ( 206- 433 -1800 or TukwilaCityClerk@tukwilawa. gov). This notice is available at
www.tukwilawa. gov, and in alternate formats with advance notice for those with disabilities. 

Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District Board meetings are audio taped. 

1



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Mission, Vision, & Goals Summary

Mission: The mission of the Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District ( MPD) is to provide the best run municipal

aquatics program in the state. 

Vision: To provide a sustainable and efficient pool that exceeds the community' s needs. 

Goals: 

A. To operate a financially self- sustaining aquatics program. 
a. Develop long term plan
b. Ensure efficient operations

c. Capitalize on grants/funding opportunities
d. Develop business partnerships

B. To provide a pool that is a safe haven. 

a. Maintain and provide continued training to ensure qualified lifeguards and staff
b. Ensure a safe and healthy place to recreate and learn
c. Protect kids

d. Coordinate water safety education

C. To be welcoming and inclusive to all. 
a. Create an inviting facility
b. Address transportation needs

c. Maintain high performance employees

d. Eliminate barriers

D. To maintain and support community involvement in the pool. 
a. Address transportation for kids

b. Promote swimming within school district( s) physical education programs
c. Develop regional partnerships
d. Growing investments

E. To provide creative and relevant programs

a. Provide long -term aquatic operations
b. Deliver swim opportunities to all in the District

c. Have the best swim team in the state

d. Offer free open swim — community swim

F. To provide annual performance reporting to the community. 

G. Continue to review governance. 

2



INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board of Commissioners

FROM: Jennafer Price Cargill, TPMPD Executive Director

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Executive Director's Report

ISSUE

Update on TPMPD operations

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None

BACKGROUND

This informational memorandum is to update the Board on the work of the Executive Director

DISCUSSION

Between September 19 and October 16, the following has been accomplished: 
a. Met weekly with City staff to review and discuss items relating to the transition
b. Updated the TPMPD' s master transition plan to reflect new information and intentions of

various ad hoc committees, distributed to Logistics Committee

c. Participated in four meetings of the Budget Committee

d. Researched and presented information concerning benefits offered by other park districts
for Budget Committee review

e. Made preliminary inquiry and site visit to a potential future monthly meeting location
f. Conferred with WCIA rep of hiring and general HR administrative practices
g. Participated in three meetings of the Logistics Committee

h. Drafted a TPMPD Employee Handbook for the Logistics Committee members review

i. Completed and documented reference checks for all three Aquatics Manager finalists

j. Reviewed audio and revised minutes from the September 24th Regular MPD meeting
k. Reviewed audio and created minutes from the September 23rd Special MPD meeting
I. Drafted reports, memos, Resolutions & related documents for the October MPD meeting
m. Attended and prepared materials for a meeting of the Tukwila Pool staff
n. Participated in one meeting of the IT Committee
o. Facilitated two meetings of the Executive Director Committee ( EDC) meeting
p. Researched and prepared information for EDC review on employee contracts

q. Researched, interviewed and obtained a proposal from management contractor with

experience helping Special Purpose Districts
r. Communicating and working with various vendors in preparation for transition
s. Communicating and working with US Bank to open a TPMPD Bank Account
t. Posting notices and preparing documentation for upcoming hearing on Tax Levy and

proposed 1% tax increase

u. Posting notices and preparing documentation for upcoming hearing on 2015 Budget
v. Attended the monthly TPAC meeting

C: \Users \Executive Directo Documents \ MPD \2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014 \4. b. Memo on ED Report. doc
3



INFORMATIONAL MEMO

Executive Director's Report

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION

None

HANDOUT

ED Time Tracking worksheets for Sept 21 through October 18, 2014

C: \Users \Executive Director \Documents \MPD\2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014\ 4. b. Memo on ED Report. doc 4



INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board

FROM: Jennafer Price Cargill, TPMPD Executive Director

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Executive Director Committee Report

ISSUE

Report on the Executive Director Committee meeting

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None

REPORT

An Executive Director Committee ( EDC) held a meeting on October 2, 2014 and another was held
on October 9, 2014. 

At the October 2nd meeting the main topic of discussion was the employment contract for the
Aquatics Manager position. Because this discussion covered sensitive HR topics, it was not open

to the public and minutes were not taken. No action was taken. 

The ED presented information on employee contracts for the committee to review

The Board President provided the committee with a draft copy of the employment contract
for the Aquatics Manager. 

At the October 9th meeting, the usual EDC meeting time was shortened to 30 minutes. No minutes

were taken. 

The ED presented draft agenda items for the next MPD meeting for the committee' s review
and feedback. The item regarding the ED and Park District Attorney's contracts were
postponed until November. All other items were accepted. 

No other agenda items were discussed. 

ATTACHMENTS

Agenda from EDC meeting 10/ 9/ 2014

C: \Users \Executive Director \Documents \MPD \2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014 \4. c. EDC meeting report memo.doc 5



6



TPMPD Executive Director Committee

Meeting Agenda
October 9, 2014

8: 30pm — 10: 00pm

Hazelnut Conference Room, 6200 Southcenter Blvd. 

Attendees: De' Sean Quinn, Kate Kruller, Kathy Hougardy, Jennafer Price Cargill

I. Opening

A. Approval of the agenda

B. Approval of last month' s minutes

II. Open Items

A. Transition Committees

1. Logistics

2. Budget

3. IT

III. New Items

A. Agenda items for October MPD meeting

1. Resolution on King County as Treasurer

2. Public Hearings on 2015 Budget, Tax Levy & 1% Tax Increase

3. Budget Proposals ( 2014 transitional budget & preliminary 2015 full budget) 

4. Expiring contracts ( Snure & Price Cargill) 

IV. Agenda Items for Next Month

V Action Items

VI. Adjournment



8



INFORMATIONAL MEMO

MPD — Staff Operations Report

Page 1 — October 15, 2014

INFORMATIONAL

MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board

FROM: Rick Still, Parks and Recreation Director

DATE: October 15, 2014

SUBJECT: Operations Report

4. D. 

ISSUE

Staff update on pool operations

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact

BACKGROUND

This memo is intended to provide the Board and Community with an update on
activities, operations and issues that have occurred at the Tukwila Pool. 

DISCUSSION

Revenues: September 2014 revenues were $33,097. Bringing the Y -T -D revenues to
190,431. 30 which is 76% of the annual revenue goal of $249, 310. September 2014

Revenues are the best September revenues on record and place September 2014 as

the 3rd best revenue month on record after July 2012 and July 2013. September

2014 revenues bring the total number of best months for revenues in that month to 9
in the last 18 months. 

September 2014 revenues were strongly positively impacted by rental payments
received for rentals that occurred in spring 2014. 

Swimming Education Programs: In September, there were 98 registrations received
for swimming lessons, totaling $ 3, 130. 75. Registrations are down overall for

September compared with the previous 10 year average of 112 for the same month

registrations. The decrease in the revenue side can be attributed to a substantially
larger share of registrations by Tukwila Residents compared with non - residents, with
Tukwila residents accounting for nearly two thirds of registrations. (Tukwila Residents

pay $ 1 less per lesson than non- residents or $8 less per session.) 

Pass Purchases: Pass sales totaled $ 2, 887 with 40 passes sold. The Family Pass
Special for the 3 -month Family Pass at 50% off during the month of September
resulted in just one 3- month Family Pass being purchased despite advertisement in
the Facility, on Facebook and on flier sent home with all Tukwila School District
Elementary school students. 

M.\ Aquatios \NPD BOARD Items \2014 \10 -22 -14 \Operations Report MEMO 10- 22- 14. doc
9



INFORMATIONAL MEMO

MPD — Staff Operations Report

Page 2 — October 15, 2014

Partnerships: Seattle Children' s Hospital and Seattle /King County Health Department
granted a no cost extension for Community Transformation Grant work. The

extension, until December 31st, will allow staff to continue to do outreach work related

to the grant and ensure a long term positive impact for the Tukwila Community. Staff

is finding challenges when working with partnering organizations as staff can only
develop offerings through the end of 2014 and partnering organizations have a much
longer time horizon for planning of programing and offerings. 

Staffing: At the September 24, 2014 MPD Board meeting the Board expressed deep care for
the part -time staff and desire that they have the opportunity for employment with the MPD in
2015. This message was relayed to the part -time staff on Friday evening, September 26, 
2014. City Administrator, David Cline, along with MPD Board President, De' Sean Quinn, 
shared with the part -time staff the details of the support services transition from the City to
the MPD and answered any questions staff had about this. MPD Board members Verna

Seal, and Kate Kruller were present as well. The MPD Executive Director provided contact

information to the staff and encouraged them to contact her about future employment with the

MPD in 2015. 

Maintenance: New pool filter grid covers have been ordered and will be delivered in the next

couple of weeks. These will be changed out by staff during the closure at the end of the
year. Staff are coordinating the annual fire alarm system testing of the facility as well. The

locker room showers have been having some issues in regards to the length of time the
water runs with a single push of the button. Staff are aware of it and making adjustments. 
The pool is scheduled to be closed at 1: 00pm on December 24, 2014 and will be re- opened

by the TPMPD in 2015. This is needed logistically to facilitate all the tasks that need to
happen for the transition from City operations to MPD. 

Support Services Transition: A joint letter sent from both the City and MPD was sent out
on October 3, 2014 to vendors, contractors, and partners that the City has worked with over
the years for the pool operations. A couple of these companies have already reached out to
the MPD ED for the future. City staff are working closely with each of the vendors and
contractors as well to assist in the information exchange and getting contracts and contact
info transferred over to the MPD. 

An email was distributed on Wednesday, October 15, 2014 to patrons on the Tukwila Pool — 
Poolinfo email distribution list informing them of the transition. An email to all City Staff was
also sent out the same day. 

City Staff continue to meet with the MPD ED weekly to touch base on the matrix task list. 
Good progress is being made on the City' s task list as each department is working on items
pertaining to their involvement with the MPD. A brief summary of the weekly meetings is
outlined below: 

September 23, 2014: The DRAFT Joint Letter of Transition was reviewed, discussion

and brainstorming happened in regards to the Part -Time Staff In- Service scheduled
this Friday, 9/ 26/ 14 @ 5: 00PM at the pool, and the City's DRAFT Communications
Plan was shared. 

September 30, 2014: Stephanie and Robert extended an offer to attend committee

meetings, to be a resource with a focus to answer questions and provide efficiencies. 
M.\ Aquatios \NPD BOARD Items \2014 \10 -22 -14 \Operations Report MEMO 10- 22- 14. doc

10



INFORMATIONAL MEMO

MPD — Staff Operations Report

Page 3 — October 15, 2014

An overview of current programming and the staffing requirements to meet program
needs and brief discussion regarding the recreation guide occurred. Information was

shared via a thumb drive to Jennafer that contained many operational documents ( per
request) and additional information and documents as well. An assets inventory and
accounts payable reports were compiled and given to the MPD ED by October 3, 
2014. 

October 7, 2014: The City Clerk attended this meeting and the focus was on the
Document Transfer Process as well as answering any questions to the " Future
Considerations" from the Clerk's matrix list. Robert shared some responses to an

email that Kim McCoy had sent from the MPD IT Committee and Resolution #3 was

reviewed. 

October 14, 2014: IT items were discussed ( DES contracting process, POS /CLASS, 
and question of sharing the City' s fiber optics which will not work out. Several vendors

have reached out to the MPD ED since the joint vendor letter was mailed out. And

Bank Account and PCard /Credit Card issues were discussed and confirmed the MPD

will be opening their own bank account with US Bank and getting a credit card to that
account. The City' s Finance Dept. competed leg work and passed the paperwork on
to the MPD ED in regards to a PCard. Brochure submission deadline of November 3rd

to the printer was verified with the MPD ED also. 

Due to the new meeting dates for the November and December MPD Board meetings, the
normal financial reports will not be ready for those meetings. 

ATTACHMENTS

N/ A

M.\ Aquatics \NPD BOARD Items \2014 \10 -22 -14 \Operations Report MEMO 10- 22- 14. doc
11



12



III

4. E. 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board

FROM: Jennafer Price Cargill, Executive Director

BY: Vicky Carlsen, Deputy Finance Director

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Report

ISSUE

Monthly financial report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

DISCUSSION

August 2014 has been closed. Total revenue for the month of August is $ 23,394 bringing the total
revenue through August to $ 539,246. Seattle Children' s was billed $ 828.25 for 2nd quarter back in

August. The City has not received the funds yet and has contacted Seattle Children' s to see when
we can expect to receive the funds. As soon as the City receives the funds, we will transfer them to
the MPD. 3rd quarter will be billed out in October. 

Total expenditures for the month are $ 69,694. The financial report attached provides additional

information detailing the total revenue and expenditures. 

Also attached is the September Support Services report detailing City support services for the MPD. 
1. 5 hours that had been reported by R Eaton for MPD transition meeting has been reversed. 

RECOM EN DATION

For information only. 

ATTACHMENTS

A. August Financial Statement

B. September Support Services Report

13



14



TUKWILA POOL MPD

Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance

January 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014

REVENUE

TAX REVENUE

PROGRAMS

RENTALS

SCHOLARSHIPS USED

OTHER

SALE OF MERCHANDISE

SALE OF SWIM MERCHANDISE

DONATIONS

GRANT

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES

ADMINISTRATION /OVERHEAD

11 SALARIES

21 FICA

24 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

26 UNEMPLOYMENT

31 OFFICE & OPERATING SUPPLIES

41 LEGAL FEES /PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

42 COMMUNICATION

43 TRAVEL

45 GROUND LEASE

46 INSURANCE

48 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

49 MISCELLANEOUS

51 INTERLOCAL CITY FEES

TOTAL ADMINSTRATION

CAPITAL & DEBT SERVICE

BRIDGE LOAN PAYMENT

BOND PAYMENT

CIP & LIFE -CYCLE REPLACEMENT

CIP RESERVE

TOTAL CAPITAL & DEBT SERVICE

OPERATIONS

11 SALARIES

12 EXTRA LABOR

13 OVERTIME

SALARIES & WAGES

21 FICA

23 PERS

24 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

25 LIFE, OPTICAL

25 MEDICAL, DENTAL, LIFE, OPTICAL

PERSONNEL BENEFITS

31 OFFICE & OPERATING SUPPLIES

31 CHEMICALS

34 RESALE PURCHASES

SUPPLIES

42 COMMUNICATION

44 ADVERTISING

45 OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES

47 PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICES

48 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

49 MISCELLANEOUS

49 CREDIT CARD FEES

OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES

TOTAL OPERATIONS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

ENDING FUND BALANCE

BUDGET

704, 395

191, 800

54, 510

10, 000) 

2, 000

1, 000

30, 000

973,705

45, 000

14, 000

10, 950

11, 000

79, 200

160, 150

121, 458

113, 130

50, 000

30, 000

314, 588

148, 848

140, 000

5, 000

293, 848

22, 005

16, 379

18, 050

1, 391

30, 937

88, 762

10, 000

7, 375

1, 500

18, 875

2, 200

10, 000

750

80, 000

20, 800

5, 200

4, 500

123, 450

524, 935

999, 673

25, 968) 

440, 537

414, 569

01 02

Percent of year expired 66.66% 

Actual Results

TOTAL TOTAL JUL AUG

26,209 $ 344, 737 $ 3, 485 $ 1, 424

41, 863 49,280 25,041 19, 034

17, 996 6, 199 1, 208 3, 856

3, 115) ( 2, 084) ( 2, 057) ( 1, 656) 

55) ( 54) ( 32) ( 33) 

389 370 147 237

558 508 203 258

78 - - 273

4, 976

83,924 403,933 27,995 23, 394

9,375 11, 250

717 861

25 13

296

1, 989

3, 115 10, 153

429

4

10, 185

208

412

14, 581 18, 135

40, 199 41, 548

30,364 30,364

56,566

30,364 86,930

35,797 35,920

39,348 45,226

1, 226 309

76,372 81, 454

5,808 6, 197

4, 398 4, 668

4, 576 4, 530

326 317

7, 735 8, 263

22,843 23,975

2, 428 4, 318

2, 271 2, 218

213 358

4, 912 6, 894

464 814

1, 194 835

13, 922 16, 736

2, 352 11, 454

1, 648 1, 788

856 1, 226

20,436 32,853

124,562 145, 176

195,125 273,654

111, 200) 130,279

319,430 208, 230

208,230 $ 338, 508

3, 750 3, 750

287 287

7 7

59 59

250

3, 612 1, 466

294

51

6, 172 4, 302

14, 188 10, 164

10, 121 10, 121

10, 121 10, 121

13, 810 11, 311

19, 253 18, 430

33,063 29,741

2, 518 2, 264

1, 467 1, 345

1, 885 1, 857

109 109

2, 843 2, 843

8, 822 8, 417

1, 235

801

1, 272

561

457

2, 037 2, 290

645 278

3, 035 4, 303

1, 522 3, 549

222 393

587 436

6, 011 8, 959

49,933 49,408

74, 241 69,694

46,246) ( 46,300) 

338, 508 292, 262

292,262 245,962

YTD

TOTAL

375, 855

135,219

29,260

8, 911) 

174) 

1, 143

1, 527

351

4, 976

539,246

28, 125

2, 152

52

415

2,238

18, 345

722

55

10, 185

208

412

43, 190

106,098

80,971

56,566

137,537

96,838

122,257

1, 535

220, 630

16, 787

11, 877

12, 848

862

21, 683

64,057

9, 253

5, 851

1, 029

16, 133

2, 201

2, 028

37,996

18, 878

4, 051

3, 105

68,260

369, 079

612,714

73,468) 

319, 430

245,962

of BUDGET

53.4% 

70.5% 

53.7% 

89. 1% 

0. 0% 

57. 1% 

0. 0% 

35. 1% 

16. 6% 

55.4% 

62.5% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

131. 0% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

92.6% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

54.5% 

66. 2% 

66.7% 

50.0% 

0. 0% 

0. 0% 

43. 7% 

65. 1% 

87.3% 

30.7% 

75. 1% 

76.3% 

72.5% 

71. 2% 

62.0% 

70. 1% 

72. 2% 

92.5% 

79.3% 

68.6% 

85. 5% 

100. 0% 

20.3% 

0. 0% 

47.5% 

90.8% 

77.9% 

69.0% 

55. 3% 

70. 3% 

613% 

282. 9% 

72.5% 

59. 3% 

15



16



Tukwila
Metropolitan
Park
District

Support
Services
Summary

September
2014

Mayors
Office

Finance Parks
and

Recreation
Public
Works

Parks

03 05 07 13 15 Grand
Total

Values Sum
of

HC
Sum
of

SALARIES & 
BENEFITS

10.
50

447.
83

46.
75

1,

897.
59

44.
50

1,

530.
68

1.

50

49.
74

5.

00

260.
91

108.
25 $

4,

186.
75

Overhead
Expense

10% $

418.
68

Invoice
Total

4,

605.
43

ALMBERG - 
DIDEON, 
DANA

CARLSEN, 
VICTORIA

EATON, 
ROBERT

FRICKE, 
KAREN

HART, 
MELISSA

JUE, 
LILY

KING, 
JAMES

Set
up
chambers

for
MPD

meeting

Set
up

chambers
for
Special
MPD

meeting

MPD
Accounting

Review
MPD

statements
MPD
Financial

statement
review
and
accounting

MPD
Transition
Meeting

MPD
SST
Mtg
and

Prep

MPD
SST
Mtg, 

Prep, 
and

Re -
cap

MPD
SST
Weekly
Mtg

with
ED
and

Assets
Inventory
List

MPD
Payroll
Processing

MPD: 
Review
and
edit

August
27th
MPD
Board
Meeting

minutes, 
email
to

City
staff

for
comments
and
provide
paper
minutes
to

Board
for

comments
prior
to

MPD: 
Communicate

with
Board
President

about
Commissioner

attendance
City
Staff

meeting

MPD
Special
Meeting: 
Assist

with
Chamber
set -
up, 

records
issues
and
minute

template
for

transcription. 

MPD
Meeting: 
Assist

with
Chamber
set -
up, 

prepare
minute

template
for

monthly
MPD
Board
Meeting, 

coordinate
transcription
of

meeting
minutes
with

contrs

Finance: 
Reconcile
July
2014
MPD
bank

statement & 
GL

cash

Finance: 
Reconcile
August
2014
MPD
Bank
Statement & 
GL
Cash

POOL
check
pressures
on

filter
tank

system, 
lube
diving
board, 
lube

pool
cover
rollers, 
checked

for
proper
operation
of

showers
and

toilets
in

men'
s

locker
roi

POOL
boiler
inspection
by

state (

I

had
to

be
on
site) 

POOL
diagnosed
and
replaced

defective
water

flow
valve

for
drinking
fountain
at

pool

installed
2

of
the
4

seats
for
the
men'
slocker
room, 

backwashed
filters, 

started
cleaning
up

the
downstairs

area. 

finished
installing

other
2

benches
in

women'
s

locker
room, 

bought
tin
plate
and
cut
to

fit

on
bottom
of
the

drinking
fountain

took
readings , 

lubed
pool
cover
rollers & 

diving
board

check
readings

lube
pool
roller
and

diving
board

Did
readings

lubed
pool
cover
rollers
and

diving
board, 

repaired
plugin
on
west
wall
south
plug
in
in

women'
s

shower. 

Backwash
pool

filters
clean

flooring
around
pool

filter
tank "
slippery

due
to

chemical
spillage" 

1

0.

5

0.

5

3.

5 1 1

1.

5 5

1.

5

1.

5 2 3 2 2

2.

25
0.

75
0.

5

0.

5

0.

5 8 4 4

44.
5 3 2

2.

5

7.

5 3 2 2 4

4.

5

W: \

1

Users \
Craig \
MPD \
2014
Financials \
City
Support
Services \
2014
City
Support
Services
Detail

1

of

2



Tukwila
Metropolitan
Park
District

Support
Services
Summary

September
2014

KING, 
JAMES

go
to

pool
and
try
and
fix

pool
floor

scrubber

3

check
reads
at

pool
and

lube
pool
cover
rollers
and

diving
board

1

clean
out
room
at

pool
with

Robert
Eaton
ship
old
pool

filters
to

be
repaired

8

do
pressure
readings
and

lube
diving
board
and
pool
cover
rollers

2

4.

25 3
1.

25

O'

FLAHERTY, 
CHRISTY

3

0.

25

LE, 

BAO -
TRAN

Digitize
records

TRANSITION
PREP: 
Format

records
to

pdf. 

Digitize
records

ZELLERHOFF, 
CRAIG

JABER, 
SUSAN

TAKECHI, 
RICHARD

HANSEN, 
PENNY

WARTELLA, 
VICTOR

SANCHEZ
ESPEJEL, 
NADIA

MPD: 

PR: 

Zaputil: 
Receipt
of

new
request; 

distribute
to

staff
and
set

timelines; 
also

distribute
to

MPD
staff

MPD: 
PR: 

Zaputil: 
Receipt
of

responsive
documents
from

staff; 

basic
review
of

records; 
transmit
documents
to

Board
Atty
to

include
an
example
of

prior
reds

MPD: 
PR: 

Zaputil: 
Receipt
of

correspondence
from
Board
Atty; 

compose
fulfillment
letter
and

transmit
to

requester
and
staff

MPD: 

Correspondence
with

ED
regarding
upcoming

agenda, 
special
meeting
notice, 
and
year -
end
public

hearings; 
Receipt
of

draft
special
meeting
notice, 
rr

MPD: 
PR
Zaputil: 
Receipt
of

final
records

from
Board
Atty; 

review
and
save
copy; 
compose

final
correspondence
and

distribute

MPD: 

Ongoing
communication
with

ED
regarding
special
meeting
notice
and
special
meeting
agenda
and
regular

MPD
agenda

MPD: 

Communication
regarding

MPD
agenda
packet
materials

MPD
Accounting

MPD
Accounting - 
IT

Costs
for
Kate
K. 

MPD
ACCOUNTS
PAYABLE
PROCESSING

Prepare
MPD

excise
tax
return

Process
MPD

receipts. 

Process
MPD

excise
tax

amendments

Processing
MPD
Receipts

W/
O # 

25628
MPD
MEETING
SETUP

w/

o # 

25628; 
MPD
SPECIAL
MEETING
SETUP

w/

o # 

25628; 
MPD
REGULAR
MEETING
SETUP

MPD
transition - 

financial
records
copied

for
MPD

0.

5

0.

25
0.

5

0.

5

0.

5

0.
5 14 13 1 1 1

1.

25
0.

5

0.

5

0.

25 2 2
1.

5

0.

5

0.

5

0.
5 15 15

W: \

1

Users \
Craig \
MPD \
2014
Financials \
City
Support
Services \
2014
City
Support
Services
Detail

2

of

2



2014
MPD
Support
Services
Cost

9,

000 _ 

9,

000
8,

000

7,

000 - 

7,

000

6,

000 _ 

6,

000

Jan -
14

Feb -
14

Mar -
14

Apr -
14 Actual

May -
14

Jun -
14

Public
Records
Request

Jul -

14

Aug -
14

Monthly
Budget

Sep -
14 Trend

Oct -
14

Nov -
14

Dec -
14

5,

000
4,

000
3,

000
2,

000
1,

000



20



umi.'. 1,4 MI

4. F. 
INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board President

FROM: David Puki, Tukwila Pool Advisory Committee Chair

DATE: October 13, 2014

SUBJECT: TPAC Committee Chair's Report

ISSUE

Summary of the October meeting held at TCC

FINANCIAL IMPACT

N/ A

BACKGROUND

Meeting date October 4th, 2014

DISCUSSION

1) Each subcommittee member presented an activity report to the committee and attendees. A
question and answer period followed each report. For a more detailed account please see the

October 4th draft meeting minutes. 

2) TPAC members discussed continued declining revenues and patron uncertainty during this
transition period. Ideas were gathered to help promote a smooth transition of operations. One
idea to provide an information table at the Pool Birthday Party event scheduled for Saturday
the 18th gathered broad committee support. The committee decided to seek Board approval to

provide volunteers for an information table at the special meeting held October 9th. The Board
approved our request. Other ideas brought forth were adopting a slogan, advertizing, monthly
special events, using Facebook and Mailchimp for e- blasts and a city employee appreciation
party in December. All members welcome the opportunity to assist the new Aquatics Manager
with marketing and promotions in the near future. 

3) Our ED informed us that the Board would be holding a special meeting on October 9th to
discuss and possibly take action on issues regarding IT, the Aquatics Managers position and
ED contract. Jennafer also said the Board planned to have an Executive Session also. 

TPAC RECOMMENDATIONS

None for the month of October. 

21



22



Tukwila Pool Advisory Committee

October 4, 2014

Draft" Minutes

Tukwila Community Center Meeting Room Arts " B" 

Call to Order: 8: 11 Dave Puki

ATTENDANCE: 

TPAC MEMBERS: Vanessa Zaputil, Dave Puki, Jeri Frangello- Anderson, Kay Mulliner, Kim McCoy

TP MPD: President De' Sean Quinn (filling in for TMPD Clerk Kate Kruller) 

TP MPD Executive Director: Jennafer Price - Cargill

GUEST: Diane Myers, Ellen Gengler, Jacque Carroll

Approval of September 6, 2014 Minutes: Vanessa made motion to accept minutes as presented, Kim

seconded. 

Business Item 1: Discussion of progress on transition to self- operation. Subcommittee activity reports

and question and answer period for each subcommittee member: 

Logistics: Dave Puki — Logistics committee meeting once a week and planning every week on Thursday' s

at Jennafer Price - Cargill' s house. Next meeting October 8th at 6: 30pm. Dave indicated that the

Logistics' committee has decided to adopt the William Shore Policies and are going through each item

one by one. Conversion and edits are being made to tailor to the Tukwila MPD. Currently the Logistics

committee has gone through the 300 and 400 sections. Dave indicated that the plan is to continue

existing contracts with current service providers and looking closely at which providers are necessary to

keep the transition seamless. Current list of pool contractors was just received by Jennafer. Stephanie

is putting together the current parks policies to give to the Logistics committee. 

IT Committee: Kim McCoy, Allan Ekberg, Kate Kruller Jennafer Price - Cargill, Ellen Gengler

Kim indicated that the IT Committee met last Sunday at Jennafer' s . Objectives, Prioritize and select

contract /facilitate technology service processes and devices. Need to settle on final POS system, current

system CLASS will no longer be supported after 2017. Looking at alternatives, Ellen has presented some

options. Looking at options of server based or Cloud based system. One system that has been

presented and investigated is REC Pro, which is server based. All the systems that are being explored

will support on -line registration. Security with any system is key to protect patrons. City will be

23



removing hardware, but cabling to stay. Current phone system is VOIP Mitel, exploring other

alternatives Comcast which can handle up to 23 phones, Integra and Century Link. Current schedule is

for selection of research, selection and acquisitions of SOS. 

October: IT Contractor, telecommunications and POS selection. 

November: Records transfer, storage, setting up new devices

December: SOA Contracts, POS, up and running records transfer and training of staff to go live end of

December. 

Hiring Committee: Currently the EDC is working on an offer for Dave Perkins. 

Budget and Finance Sub - Committee: Vanessa Zaputil — Working on presenting a transitional budget to

the board. Treasurer recommendation. King County looks to be a good deal, with no charge. King

County also does offer Investment Pool Management for a small fee. CPA and Bookkeeper still needed

for tax filing. Currently the Committee is looking into all options that are available. Ellen presented
information in regards to a 501C option. Currently working on a rough of the 2015 budget, this looks
more like a line item budget. Ellen indicated that each committee seems to pivot around each other. 

Budget committee meets weekly at City Hall. 

Business Item 2: Discussion on marketing pool events during transition to reduce loss and provide

transition information to pool patrons: Need to increase revenues, there has been some uncertainty

with the patrons about the transition the pool is going through. Where are we losing revenues? Lessons

were down by half in August. Budget for 2013 we brought in $ 237, 000, 2014 was budget at a low figure

of $240, 000, at current rate of revenue would only be at $200,000 for 2014. What is the message is the

MPD wants to send out to the community. Dave suggested a slogan " New Beginnings ". FAQ handout

for patrons to answer the common questions that are being asked. TPAC made recommendation to

offer help with a table at the Pool Birthday party on October 18th to answer questions patrons have

regarding the transition and provide answers. De' Sean indicated that he would pass the information on

to the board to have TPAC man the table. Vanessa to email De' Sean with the FAQ information to be

presented. December it would be great to put an article in the Tukwila Reporter regarding the pool

transition. Vanessa asked about when looking at new IT solutions, email blasts would be very helpful, 

Kim also noted that looking at systems that can support text messaging also. Poster or banner in the

lobby or pool was also suggested to help put out information to patrons. Future events to have a meet

the staff at grand re- opening and it was strongly recommended that doing an event for appreciation for

the current staff. 

Business Item 3: Executive Director Update — Special meeting is being put together for October 9th

location to be determined at 6: 30 to take action for Aquatics Manager, IT Related Issues and an

Executive Session for a couple of items. Ellen asked if there was anything needed from the Finance and

24



Budget Committee to be able to present the offer to the Dave Perkins. Kim indicated that he was

presenting to the board to be an independent IT Contractor for the pool. Dave indicated that there

would not be a conflict of interest with him continuing with TPAC. 

Vanessa made motion to adjourn, Jeri seconded. 

Next meeting November 1, 2014

25



26



Tukwila Pool Advisory Committee

September 6, 2014

Minutes

Tukwila Community Center

Call to Order: 8: 11 am Dave Puki

ATTENDANCE: TPAC Members: Jeri Frangello- Anderson, Vanessa Zaputil, Dave Puki

TPMPD Clerk: Kate Kruller

TPMPD Executive Director: Jennafer Price - Cargill

GUEST: Diane Myers

Approval of August 2, 2014 Minutes: Vanessa made motion to accept minutes as presented, Jeri

seconded. Unanimous vote

BUSINESS ITEM 1: Community /public pools marketing discussion continuation. Capture any lessons

learned from first community /pool event: Presentation was made to the board at the August MPD

meeting and very well received. Biggest challenge was determining crowd attendance. Follow up with

Parks Department for what their opinion was regarding the event and if they would like to see a

continuation of this event in the future. Consistency is key, need to continue at least 3 years to see

results. Early planning would also help with organization for volunteers from different organizations and

sponsorship opportunities. Jennafer indicated that as we go through this transition more community

events will be key in the future. Marketing in the future for upcoming events would be key to get the

word out like eblasts to members, signage, staff involvement. Continue marketing events at the pool for

2015, possibly once a quarter. Jennafer indicated that with the transition she would love to see TPAC be

very involved with helping the new Aquatics Manager with marketing. TPAC to add a 15 minute

marketing agenda item to each TPAC meeting. 

BUSINESS ITEM 2: MPD Operations transition subcommittee reports and discussion what' s next moving

forward: 

Logistics Committee: Dave Puki . 

Dave indicated that there is a lot to accomplish. Verna had provided a policy matrix showing what

Tukwila currently has, William Shore Policies and Des Moines Policies to be able to work with as a
guideline. Task list was provided to include Finance, Human Resources, Pool Operations, Legal and IT. 

The Logistics Committee decided that IT is such a huge task, that they have requested that there be an IT

27



Committee be formed. Finance is also a big item, that this also be included with the Budget Committee. 

Discussion at the Logistics meeting and looking at the possibly of continuing contracts with current

service providers for continuation of services. Communication between current and new operations

will be key to success. Next Logistics meeting is September 18th at 6: 30 at Valley View Library. 

Budget Committee: Vanessa Zaputil

Recommendation made to Commissioners to authorize to pay Aquatic Manager and try to stay to lower

end of the salary base. Discussion regarding the Executive Director salary and the additional work that

will be required and how she will be compensated. Next Budget meeting, September 6, 2014 from 1 -3

at the Burien Library. Discussion regarding the possibility of having the sub - committee meetings at

Valley View Sewer district. 

Hiring Committee: Jennafer Price - Cargill reported due to Kim McCoy not available

19 candidates, 11 made it through the minimum qualifications. 11 were asked to do a phone screening, 

out of the 11, 9 did phone screening. Jennafer did all phone screenings, 6 were recommended and 5

moved forward. 1 candidate is local and 4 are out of the area. Skype interviews to take place on

September 9th and 11th. Committee members to review recordings of interviews and present their

recommendation on September 23rd to the board. Steve Burke also to interview the candidates one on

one to review their qualifications. 

BUSINESS ITEM # 3: Executive Director Report. Jennafer indicated that in 2015 she would really like to

see TPAC be very involved with marketing and policies in 2015. TPAC members were in total agreement

with future involvement regarding marketing and policies. 

Vanessa made motion to adjourn, Jeri seconded. 

Meeting adjourned 9: 46

Next TPAC Meeting October 4, 2014

28



5.A. 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board

FROM: Jennafer Price Cargill, Executive Director

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Ad hoc transition committees update

ISSU E

An update on the progress of the ad hoc committees formed to transition the Tukwila Pool

operations to the TPMPD

FINANCIAL IMPACT

none

BACKGROUND

In July, the TPMPD Board voted to form four ad hoc committees to address the various work
necessary to transition to self- operating. Those committees are: Logistics, Budget, IT and Legal. 

DISCUSSION

For information purposes only. 
The Budget Committee has finalized a recommended transition budget for 2014, a

Draft 2015 Budget, and is recommending a new TPMPD Treasurer for Board
approval. 

The Logistics Committee has reviewed the Master Transition Task list, reviewed a

sample set of policies, developed and recommended a preliminary employee
handbook for immediate implementation and future revision as needed. 

The IT Committee was formed, met one time, developed a scope of tasks and

implemented a Contractor search. 

ATTACHMENTS

none

C: \Users \Executive Directo Docum ents \MPD \2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014 \5. a. Committees update. doc
29



30



umi.'. 1,4 MI

5. B. 
INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board of Commissioners

FROM: TPMPD Logistics Committee

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Committee Report and TPMPD Employee Handbook for Board Review

ISSUE

Logistics Committee' s deliverables, task list and first set of proposed policies for the TPMPD

FINANCIAL IMPACT

N/ A

BACKGROUND

Formed in August, the Ad Hoc Logistics Committee members include: Verna Seal ( Commissioner), 

Kathy Hougardy (Commissioner), Christine Neuffer (Community Member), Dave Puki ( TPAC Chair) 

and Jennafer Price Cargill ( Executive Director). 

DISCUSSION

After reviewing various sets of policies from local pools, the Logistics Committee wishes to provide the
TPMPD Board of Commissioners with a first set of policies as included in the TPMPD Employee

Handbook for immediate adoption and implementation. These policies are embedded in the

Employee Handbook and cover the areas of: 

Compensation ( pg. 13) 
Performance Evaluation ( pg. 16) 
Training ( pg. 16) 
Benefits ( pg. 17) 
Drugs and Alcohol ( pg. 23) 
Employee Responsibilities ( pg. 24) 
Whistleblowing ( pg. 38) 
Discipline, Termination & Rules of Conduct (pg. 40) 

In addition to proposed policies, the Employee Handbook contains procedures which will be used as

an operational guide to the employees in support of the policies. 

The Committee expects to submit revisions to the Employee Handbook, along with additional policies
covering Board and Administration and Pool Operations according to the Schedule of Deliverables
provided. 

The Logistics Committee has been utilizing a Master Transition Plan which was developed to
complement the City of Tukwila' s transition task list. A copy of the current version of the plan is
attached for the Commissioners benefit. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Logistics Committee recommends that the Board approve a motion to adopt the policies

contained in the TPMPD Employee Handbook. 

31



ATTACHMENTS

TPMPD Employee Handbook

Logistics Committee Schedule of Deliverables

TPMPD Master Transition Plan

32



Logistics Committee Deliverable Schedule for TPMPD Board Meetings

Draft: October 15, 2014

Deliverable Oct. 2014 Nov. 

2014

Dec. 

2014

Jan. 2015 Feb. 

2015

Mar. 2015

Employee

Handbook 1st Draft

Additional

Employee /HR

Policies

Board & 

Administrative

Policies

Operational Policies

Employee

Handbook — 

Revised

Revisions ( as

needed) 



coA



Function: 
Clerk'
s

Duties, 
Records & 
MPD
Meeting
Support

Primary
Goal: 

Transition
City
Clerk

support
services
responsibilities
to
MPD. 

Task

List
Actions, 
Steps, 
Coordination

and /
or

Questions

Target
Date

Assigned
to

Completed

Records

City
Staff
Responsibilities: 

A. 

City
to
transfer

custody
of
paper
records
produced
on

behalf
of

the
MPD

to
the
MPD
to

include
but

not
limited
to

original
Resolutions, 
ILAs, 

Contracts
and

Agreements, 
Agendas, 
Minutes, 
legal

notices, 
and
public

records
request

files. 

MPG) 
has

requested
ar

estimate
on °

o ; 

r - 

of
cionr — 

i1

be
produced
so -

Mar
we
can
ser
Up= 
srorage

B. 

City
to
transfer

custody
of
electronic

documents
produced
on

behalf
of

the
MPD
to
the
MPD, 
to
include
but

not
limited
to
WORD

documents, 

PDF
files, 

public
records
responsive
records, 
and
all

documents

contained
in

the "

Metropolitan
Park
District (
MPD) 
Pool" 

directory
in

the
Digital
Records
Center. 

A. 

11/

30/ 

14

MPD
Responsibilities: 

A. 

Research
and
create
a

document
retention
policy

for
Board

approval

B. 

Establish
appropriate
storage
area (
away

from
moisture
and

humidity), 

particularly
for

storage
of
records
with

long -
term
or
archival

requirements. 
C. 

Establish
an

MPD
Server (
task

duplicated
in

IT

function) 

D. 

Collaborate
with

local
Washington
State
Archives

office
regarding

retention
and

disposition
of
records. 

E. 

Name
a

Public
Records
Officer
as
required

by
RCW
4.

56. 

F. 

Create
a

public
records
request
policy
and

form (
examples
available
on

City
of

Tukwila
website
and

through
MRSC.
org) 

G. 

Post
information
on

MPD
website
as
required
by
law (

RCW
42.
56). 

H. 

Establish
procedures

for
5 -

day
responses, 

tracking, 
and
exemptions. 

I. 

Adopt
legislation

eliminating
requirement

for
MPD
to

maintain
a

central

index
of
records. (

Examples
at

MRSC.
org) 

J. 

Upgrade
document
imaging
tool. 

Logistics
Cmte

IT

Cmte

IT

Cmte
ED Board Logistics

Cmte

ED ED ED /

Board
ED



Meeting
Support

Services

City
Responsibilities: Completed MPD

Responsibilities: 
A. 

Enter
into
a

contract
for

minute
taking
and /
or

transcription
services. 

Logistics
Cmte

B. 

Obtain
copier

for
producing
paper
copies
of
agenda
packets. 

Budget
Cmte

C. 

Determine
location
for

meetings
and
make
any
contractual

arrangements. 

Logistics
Cmte

D. 

Make
decision

about
a

recording
system, 
if

any. 

Logistics
Cmte

E. 

Meeting
needs: 
speaker
sign -
up
sheets, 

Executive
Session

record
sheet. 

ED

F. 

Optional
meeting

items: 
microphone
system, 
electronic
presentation

capabilities, 
flag, 

podium, 
nameplates
made

for
Commissioners

and /
or

other
officials. 

Logistics
Cmte

G. 

Establish
procedure

for
meeting
set -
up
and

take -
down. 

ED

H. 

Review
with

Board
Attorney

and /
or

WCIA
as

needed
to

ensure

compliance
with

Open
Public
Meetings
Act (

OPMA). 

Legal
Cmte



Function: 
Finance

Primary
Goal: 

Transition
all

finance
and

treasurer
items /
duties
to
MPD

Task

Actions
and /
or

Steps

Target Date

Assigned
to

Compl eted

Transfer
Treasurer
City
Responsibilities: 

and
Accounting

1, 

Notify
King
County
that
the
City

will
no

longer
be

providing
administrative
services

for
the

August

Vicky

Duties

MPD. 

Vicky
has

made
contact
with

King
County
and
w, // 

provide
contact

info
to
fen

fer. 

2. 

Transfer
tax

deposits
from
the
City
bank

account
to

designee. 

December

3. 

Transfer
accounts
payable
and
payroll
checks
to

designee

December
E

ick

4. 

Reconcile
final
tax

deposits
received

from
King
County

After transition

MPD
Responsibilities

1. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation
requested: 

Decide
whether
or
not
to

designate
King

Sept. 

BC

Co
as

the
Treasurer

and
utilize

their
other
services

2. 

Issue
a

resolution
changing
the

Treasurer
to

King
County (
or
whomever
is

decided) 

effective
Jan
1

October

JPC /
Board

3. 

Coordinate
with

King
County
to
transfer
tax

deposits
from
the
City
bank

account
to

King

December
JPC

County. 
4. 

Coordinate
with

King
County
to
set
up
process
to
issue

accounts
payable
and
payroll

checks

December
JPC

5. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation
requested: 

Resolution #
4

revisions
as

appropriate

BC

6. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation
requested: 

Cash
flow, 

petty
cash, 
purchasing
and

payment
policies

BC

WCIA

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Review
account, 

transfer
remaining

items
as
needed

December
ick

2. 

Update
mailing
address

December

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Designate
WCIA
Delegates

JPC

2. 

Fulfill
Delegate

responsibilities

December
JPC

Cashier /
POS

City
Responsibilities: 

System

1. 

Transfer
records
related
to

MPD
from
CLASS
to
MPD

October

Steph

City
will
provide
recommendations
regarding

types
of

info
that

could
betransferred, 

Agreed
nfo
created
within
n

past
two

years
is

sufficient, 



w

P

5

system
may

have
additional
parameters

for
how
info

could
be
a

o = 

j=

de
o

goon
as

they

learn — 

sooner
the
better

2. 

Remove
MPD
from

armored
car
contract, 
pro:, =

de
cost
and
contact

December
ick

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Research
and

decide
on
a

POS
system

2. 

Set
schedule

for
system

installation
and

implementation

3. 

Populate
system
with
2

years' 
worth
of
customer

data
provided

by
the
City

4. 

Train
staff
on
use
of
system

5. 

Designate
cashier(
s) 

and
ensure

that
daily

receipts
are

deposited

6. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation
requested: 

level
of
security

for
depositing
daily

receipts (
see
armored
car
option
above, 
can
use
state

bids) 

IT

Cmte. 
IT

Cmte. 
IT

Cmte. Aquatics
Mgr. 

JPC BC

Finance
records

City
Responsibilities: 

Ongoing

E

ick

Determine
types
of
records
to
transfer: 

invoices, 
vouchers, 
receipts, 
reports, 
etc. 

2011
to

present
Determine

desired
format
of
records - 
electronic

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Have
a

server
in

place
to

store
electronic
copies
of
records (

duplicated
in

IT
function) 

IT

Cmte. 

State
Audit

City
Responsibilities: Notify

State
Auditor

about
change
in

provider
of
administrative
services. 
o. 

ckp
will
complete

8711710i
co

Maur, 

2. 

Provide
State
Auditor

contact
information
to

MPD

3. 

Provide
assistance
with
audit
as
needed

August

Sept

E

ick

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation
requested: 
experience

levels
and
qualifications

for

CPA
2. 

Engage
an
accountant
capable
of

handling
State
Audits

BC BC

P -

Cards

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Any
credit
cards

issued
by
the
City
to
MPD

staff
cancelled
No
WO

employees
have
p -

cad

City =
s

looking
into
how
to
issue
an

MPD
specific
p -

card, 
Should
City
stop

this
effort
and
wait
until

WO
has
an

accountant
on

board

2. 

Provide
information
to

MPD
so

they
can
set
up

their
own
P -

Card
system. 

cr

August October

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Continue
to

work
toward

achieving
an

MPD- 
specific
P -

Card
avo .,< 

t

tt

r #

r .,

i - -

I

JPC



2. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Who
will
receive
P- 

cards? 

3. 

Begin
process

for
acquiring
a

card
for
Aquatics
Manager

and
others
as
needed

BC CPA

Banking

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Coordinate
with

designee
to

begin
accepting

MPD
deposits

2. 

Transfer
a

portion
of

MPD
funds
to
the
MPD

3. 

Transfer
remaining

MPD
funds
to
the
MPD

Nov? 

December After transition
E

ick, 

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Engage
an

Accountant /
Bookkeeper /
CPA

2. 

ODen
o =¢

n

bank
account (

Resolution
43 ?, 

also
King
Co

uses
US
Bank, 

easiest
option
if

going

with
King
Co) 

3. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Decide
how
to

invest
cash
reserves (
can
elect
to
use

King
Co
at
set
up) 

4. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Signing

authority
policy, 

banking
policies, 
cash

flow

policies, 
etc. 

BC ED /

CPA
BC BC

Payroll

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Provide
MPD

with
all

required
benefit

provider
information (
L &

I, 

etc) 

2. 

Transition
benefit

administration
to
MPD

designee

3. 

Continue
providing
payroll
services
to

current
and
newly

hired
MPD

employees
until

the

transition

Nov

December

Now

until December
31

ick

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Decide
how
the

work
will

be
done — 

i.

e. 

who
will

do

calculations, 
who
will

issue
checks

2. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Calculate

acceptable
benefits

cost

3. 

Coordinate
to

provide
benefits
to

staff

BC BC ED /

CPA

Reporting

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Provide
MPD

with
templates
for

current
reporting
model

2. 

Provide
MPD

with
final

year -
end

financial
statement

Nov

Febrary

E

ick
E

ick

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Budget
Committee

recommendation: 
Consider

what
year -
end
reporting
model
to
use: 

cash

basis (
simpler, 

less
time

consuming) 
or

GAAP (
what

the
City

uses) 

BC

Bond

City
Responsibilities: 



Draft
2 — 

9/

14/

14
JPC & 

BC
Chair

changes
1. 

City
Attorney

reviews
current

ILtA
and
make
contact
with

MPD
Attorney
if

recommending

further
action, 

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

MPD
Attorney

review
current

ILA
and
make
contact
with

City
Attorney
if

recommending

further
action
to
the
Board

on

no _
further

actio __ - -_ - - 

July

Brian
Snure

Excise
Tax

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Provide
MPD

with
all

excise
tax

returns

2. 

Prepare
final

excise
tax

return. 
Due
in

January
2015

3. 

Notify
WA
State
Dept
of

Revenue
of
change
in

administrative
services
provider

4. 

Provide
information
on
reporting
excise
tax

December December December January

ick
E

icky
E

ick
E

ick

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Engage
an
accountant
with
experience

doing
Excise
tax

returns

2. 

Provide
City

with
accountant'
s

contact
information

3. 

Check
with
the

Department
of

Revenue
to
see
if

MPD
meets
criteria
to

report
quarterly

BC JPC CPA

Unclaimed Property

City
Responsibilities: 1. 

Provide
MPD

with
final

unclaimed
property
report

2. 

Provide
reporting

documentation
from
WA
State
Unclaimed
Property

division

Nov Nov

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Adopt
a

2014
resolution

for
unclaimed
property

2. 

Learn
what
is

required (
Attorney) 

and
develop

policy
for

unclaimed
property
as
needed

Sept

JPC /
Board

Brian
Snure /
BC

Draft
2 — 

9/

14/

14
JPC & 

BC
Chair

changes



Function: 
Human
Resources

Primary
Goal: 

Transition
Human
Resources

support
service
responsibilities
to
the
MPD. 

Task

Actions, 
Steps, 
Coordination

and /
or

Questions

Target
Date

Assigned
to

Completed

Documents

City
Responsibilities Provide

sample
copies
of
personnel
policies
to

MPD

October
2014

Stephanie

Job
Descriptions
for

temporary
staff

Salary
schedule

for
temporary
staff

Parent /
School
Authorization
Form

Sample
copy
of
application

form

Emergency
contact

form

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Define
document

storage
requirements /
policies

Logistics
Cmte

2. 

Establish
document

storage
facilities

Logistics
Cmte

3. 

Revise
or
create

MPD'
s

HR
Documents

a. 

Personnel
Policies

b. 

Job
Descriptions

c. 

Payroll
schedule

d. 

Parent /
School
Authorization
Forms

e. 

Applications
f. 

Emergency
contact

forms

g. 

Photo
Release

Logistics
Cmte

Staff
Transition

City
Responsibilities: 

Nov. & 

Dec

Determine
end

date
for

part -
time / 

temporary
staff
recruitment

2014

Determine
end

date
for

advertising
part- 

time /
temporary

staff

Send
final
PAF'
s

for
temporary

staff
signatures

Provide
Public
Employees
Retirement
System (
PERS) 

withdrawal

information. 
MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Define
hiring

needs

ED /

AM

2. 

Define
hiring

process & 
timeline
for

each
staff
position

ED /

AM

3. 

In

partnership
with

City
staff, 
participate
in

an
upcoming
pool
staff
meeting

to
communicate

hiring
process
to

current
staff

ED



ft% 

3 _ 

4. 

Implement
hiring

process

ED /

AM

HR
Policies

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Research
and
review
policy
options

2. 

Propose
personnel
policies
to
the
Board
for
immediate
implementation

Logistics
Cmte

Logistics
Cmte

On- 

Boarding
Staff

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Develop
a

District
Employee
Handbook

2. 

Revise
or
create
all

necessary
HR
documents

such
as

those
listed

above (
See

Documents) 

Logistics
Cmte

ED /

AM

Benefits Administration

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Define
benefits
for

each
position

2. 

Propose
to

Board
for

approval

3. 

Establish
process

for
administration
of

benefits

Budget
Cmte

Budget
Cmte

ED /

CPA



03 W

Function: 
Information
Technology

Primary
Goal: 

Transition
all

IT

responsibilities
to

MPD. 
Task

Actions, 
Steps, 
Coordination

and /
or

Questions

Target Date

Assigned to

Completed

POS (
Point
of

Sale) 
System

Transition

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Remove
hardware

MPD
Responsibilities: (
Duplicated
in

Finance
function) 

1. 

Research
and

decide
on
a

POS
system

2. 

Set
schedule

for
system

installation
and

implementation

3. 

Populate
system
with
2

years' 
worth
of
customer

data
provided
by
the
City

4. 

Train
staff
on
use
of
system — 

Inform
City
of

training
schedule
2

weeks
in

advance

Social
Media

City
Responsibilities: 

X

Website
access

Facebook
access

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Assign
website
updating
responsibility
and
provide
access
if

needed

2. 

Assign
Facebook

responsibility
and
provide
access

3. 

Develop
additional
social
media
outlets
as
needed

CLASS
Records

City
Responsibilities: City

staff
to

determine
retention
and
possible

transfer
of
relevant
record
series. 

Jennafer, 
Amy, 
or

Malcolm
need
to
identify
the
type
of

information
they'
ll

need

to
continue
with

MPD
programs
after
the
transition. 
Amy
may

be
able
to
print

out
much
of

that
data
before
the
transition, 
but

she'
ll

have
to

work
with
IT

to

extract. 
MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
what

information
is

desired ".
1# 

1I -# - ,

ot

yrs #- 

possibly
electronic _

c ; 

d

only, 
paper _

co !

s

are
nor
tic-
tilt-

able, 
CIr
cln
f ,

sif' 

nir -

1

paper
recorr

s„, 

Analogue
Phone
Lines

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition
to
new
phone
system. 

Transfer
service
of

Integra
account

from
City
to
MPD. 

Determine
type
of
phone
system
and

features
to
be
implemented. 

MPD
will
need
to
install

new
wiring
if

analogue
phones
will

be
used. 



Remove
Remote
Access
Call
Forwarding
from

primary
phone

line. 

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
if

analogue
phone

line
are

desired

2. 

If

so, 

purchase
analogue
phones

3. 

Define
phone
procedures

Telephone
Service

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Transfer
service
of
alarm
systems

from
City
to

MPD

Transfer
DID
lines
from
City
to

MPD (
206- 
454 -
7578
through
454 -
7581) 

Reclaim
VOIP

phones (
done
at

time
of

PC /

hardware
reclamation) 

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
if

VoIP
phones
are

desired (
currently
using

Integra: $
83

per
month) 

2. 

If

so
purchase

VoIP
phones

3. 

Define
Alarm

procedures

Cell
Phone
Service

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Transfer
service
of

Verizon
account

from
City
to

MPD

Reclaim
Amy
Kindell'
s

iPhone
or

be
reimbursed

for
iPhone (
if

not
paid

by
MPD). 

It

was
purchased
in

Oct
2012

with
budget
000.
07.
574.
100.
42.
00

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Clarify
what

Verizon
account

City
is

referring
to

above

2. 

Transfer
billing
of
main

MPD
cell
number
to

MPD (
currently
in

Jen'
s

name) 

3. 

Determine
issuance
of
cell
phone
to
new

Aquatics
Manager

Email

City
Responsibilities: Currently

hosted
by
Rackspace

MPD
must
obtain
credit
card
processing
capabilities

before
target
transition
date. 

Setup
meeting
with

Jennafer, 
to
transition
Admin

account
and
methods
of

payment
to

MPD

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Obtain
P -

card

2. 

Take
over

Admin
and
payment
responsibilities

DNS
Hosting

City
Responsibilities: Currently

hosted
by
Rackspace

Will
be
taken

care
of
at

the
same

time
we

transition
Email

above. 



01 01

Server

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Research
options
and
set
up
a

Server

2. 

Ensure
that

maintenance
and
monitoring
are

taken
care
of

Internet
connectivity

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Research
options
and
set
up

internet
in

Pool
facility (

currently
using

Comcast $
78

per
month) 

2. 

Ensure
that

maintenance
and
monitoring
are

taken
care
of

X

Hardware

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Remove
hardware

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Assess
needs (
computers, 
printers, 
phones, 
copier, 
etc.) 

2. 

Purchase
equipment

Software

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Will
be

removed
with

hardware

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
software
needs

2. 

Purchase
and

install

Computer
peripherals

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Remove
hardware

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
peripherals
needed (
current: 
register, 
receipt
printers, 
card
printers

card
reader, 

laminator, 
etc.) 

2. 

Purchase
equipment

Network / 
Network
Switch

City
Responsibilities: Determine

date
of

transition

Remove
hardware

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
network
needs

2. 

If

needed, 
purchase
a

network
switch

Technical
Support

City
Responsibilities: 

X

Technical
support
ends
after
equipment
is

removed

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Determine
technical

support
needs



2. 

Contract
with
service
as
needed

HVAC/ 
Facility
Monitoring
City
Responsibilities: Currently

a

SQL
database
hosted
by
City, 

with
remote
access

for
vendor

X

City
staff
to

determine
retention
and
possible

transfer
of
relevant
record
series. 

Determine
date
of

transition. 

MPD
Responsibilities: 

1. 

Make
contact
with

HVAC
vendor
to

modify
controller
IP

for
web
access
after

network
is

established (
Sunbelt
does
HVAC

customer
support) 



Department: 
Pool

Operations
Primary
Goal: 

Transition
all

pool
maintenance
and
operations
to

TPMPD
Task

Actions
and

Timeline

Target

Date

Assigned
to

Completed

Boiler

Provide
procedures
and
operations
of

boiler
system. 

Chemicals
Monitoring

Provide
procedures

for
operation
of
computerized
chemical

feed
system. 

Water
Circulation

Provide
procedures
and
overview
of
water
circulation
system. 

Pool
filtration

system

Provide
procedures
and
overview
of
pool

filtration
system. 

Maintenance
Procedures

Provide
schedule
of
weekly, 
monthly, 
quarterly
and /
or
annual

maintenance
procedures. 

WebCNTRL

Provide
procedures
and
overview
of

WebCNTRL
system. 

Inventory
supplies
and
equipment

Prepare
final
inventory

Health
Department
Permit

Ensure
permit
is

TPMPD
name

Pool
Programs

A. 

Provide
copy
of
procedures
manual

B. 

Provide
copy
of
pool
programs

descriptions

C. 

Provide
copy
of
annual
program
schedule
overview

D. 

Provide
copy
of
pool
scheduling

tool

Emergency
Action
Plans

Provide
copy
of
current

EAP
procedures. 

Marketing

Provide
list
of

2013
and

2014
marketing
resources. 

Communications

Develop
joint

communications
letter
to

communicate
with
contractors

and
services
to

reduce
confusion
and
save

time
for

each
agency. 

Sept
22

X

Keys /
Facility
Security /
Codes

Transfer
all

keys
and
codes

from
City
Staff
to

MPD
ED

Switch
garbage
service

from
City

Contract
to

MPD

Work
with

Public
Works

staff
that

manages
this
and

Waste
Management. 

MPD
Responsibilities

General
pool

logistics

Define
Hours
of
operation /

Closure
dates

Define & 

carry
out

Uniform
policy

for
staff (

including
nametags) 

Define
opening

date

Develop
a

staffing
plan

LC LC LC LC /

AM



Grounds
Maintenance

Contract
with
a

landscape
maintenance
company (

typical
tasks): 

Mowing, 
line
trimming, 

fertilizing, 
spraying, 

blowing, 
weeding, 
pruning, 

garbage
cans, 

litter
p /

u, 

etc

LC
or

ED

Alarm
System

Contract

ED

Trash & 

Recycling
Pick
up

Contract

ED

Emergency
Action
Plans

To
be
developed

ED /

AM

Keys /
Security
System

Contract Establish
who

has
keys

ED

Janitorial
Maintenance

Contract

LC? 

Or
ED? 

Marketing /
Communications

Development
of
a

marketing
plan

Executing
materials (

Activities
Guide

winter
deadline
11/

3/

14) 

Social
Media

Posters /
Info
in

pool
lobby

ED /

AM /
TPAC

ED /

AM
LC /

AM
LC

Passes

Establish
membership /
pass
structure

If

different
than
City'
s

system, 
develop

new
system (
i.

e., 

design

cards, 
purchase
a

card
reader
or
whatever, 
etc.) 

advertise
changes

LC LC ED /

AM

Pool
Programming

Develop
Winter

programming
schedule

Contact
instructors
to

confirm
availability

Final
schedule
to

graphic
artist

Submit
to

printer
by
November
3

ED /

AM
ED /

AM
ED /

AM
ED /

AM

Staffing

Hiring
of

Assistant
Manager(
s) 

Hiring
of

Lifeguards
and

Instructors

Training
of

Assistant
Mgrs., 

Lifeguards
and

instructors

Day
to
day

supervision
of

Lifeguards
and

instructors

Develop
a

staffing
schedule

ED /

AM
ED /

AM
ED /

AM
AM AM

Sponsorships

Develop
a

Sponsorship
policy

for
Board

approval

Solicit
sponsorships

LC AM /
ED /

TPAC

Other
operational
policies

Research
and
recommend

for
Board

approval



Function: 
Legal

Primary
Goal: 

Facilitate
transition
of

Legal
matters
related
to
the

TPMPD. 

Task

List
Actions, 
Steps, 
Coordination

and /
or

Questions

Target Date

Assigned to

Completed

City
Responsibilities: 

Loan
Repayment

A. B. 

Review
ILA
11 -

006

Develop
new

ILA
regarding
secured

loan
repayment

Transition
Agreement

A. B. C. 

Records
transfer

Continuing
support
services (
i.

e. 

closing
books, 

processing
future

public
records

requests) Indemnification

Ending
Document(
s) 

A. B. 

Formal
termination

letter

Terminate
or
amend

facility
use
agreement

MPD
Responsibilities

Repeal
MPD
Resolution #
1

regarding
organization
of

the
District
to

reflect

operations
as
of

January
1, 

2015



50



EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Employees

Developedd by the .IPMPD Logistics Cominrdttee
Christine Neuffer, Community Member

Dave Pukii, ftikwila Pool Advisory Committee Chair
Jennaler Price Carel, Executive Director

Kathy iiougardy, Board of Commlisslioners
Verna Sea, Board of Commlisslioners

51



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures

Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook

Table of Contents

Part 1: General Information 3

1. Introduction 3

2. Purpose /Scope of Employee Handbook 3

3. At Will Employment 3

4. Equal Employment Opportunity 4

5. Work Place Harassment 4

6. Work Place Violence 5

7. Workplace Ethics and Conduct 5

8. Immigration Law Compliance 5

9. Employee Personnel Records 6

10. References 6

Part 2: Hours and Attendance 7

1. Employment Status Definitions 7

2. Working Hours 7

3. Overtime 7

4. Attendance 8

5. Emergency & Maintenance Closures 8

6. Breaks and Meal Periods 8

7. Call Back 9

8. Time Reporting 9

Part 3: Employment Practices 10

1. New Employee Orientation 10

2. Customer Relations 10

3. Staff Supervision 10

4. Promotions and Transfers 11

5. Layoffs 11

6. Reclassification 11

7. Resignation 11

Part 4: Compensation Policy 12

1. Employee Pay Rates 12

2. Paydays 12

3. Payroll Records 12

4. Deductions 12

5. Paycheck Errors 12

6. Expense Reimbursement 12

7. Compensation Upon Termination 14

Part 5: Performance Evaluations and Training 15

1. Performance Evaluation Policy 15

2. Training Policy 15

Part 6: Benefits Policy 16

1. Optional Benefits 16

2. Paid Holidays 16

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 1
52



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

3. Paid Time Off (PTO) 16

4. Family And Medical Leave 17

5. Administrative Leave 19

6. Military Leave 19

7. Domestic Violence Leave 19

8. Other Leaves of Absence With Pay 20

9. Workers Compensation 20

10. Education Training 20

11. Membership in Professional and Technical Societies 21

12. Professional and Technical Registration 21

13. Staff use of the Facility 21

Part 7: Drugs and Alcohol 22

1. Drug and Alcohol Policy 22

2. Prohibited Conduct 22

3. Removal from Duty 22

4. Testing 22

5. Confidentiality and Record Retention 23

6. Consequences of Engaging in Prohibited Conduct or Positive Drug or Alcohol Tests 23

7. Voluntary Referral 23

Part 8: Employee Responsibilities Policy 24

1. Uniforms 24

2. Standards of Professional Conduct 24

3. Outside Employment and Conflicts of Interest 24

4. Gifts and Gratuities 24

5. Other Conflicts of Interest 24

6. Political Activities 25

7. No Smoking 25

8. Use of District Equipment 25

9. Non - Solicitation 25

10. Employment of Relatives 26

11. Bulletin Boards 26

12. Employee Parking 26

13. Personal Property 26

14. Computer Usage and Privacy 27

15. Contact with News Media 28

16. Safety 28

17. Suggestions 28

18. Dispute Resolution Procedures 28

19. Litigation 29

Part 9: Whistleblowing Policy 30

1. Definition of Improper Governmental Action 30

2. Procedures for Reporting 30

3. Protections Against Retaliatory Actions 31

4. Responsibilities 31

Part 10: Discipline, Termination & Rules of Conduct Policy 32

1. Discipline 32

2. Termination 33

3. Rules of Conduct 33

Employee Handbook Receipt and Acknowledgement 34

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 2
53



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 1: General Information

1. 1 Introduction

1. 1. 1 The Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District ( District), which was established in 2011, 

operates under laws of the State of Washington governing Metropolitan Park Districts ( RCW 35. 61). 
Under this system, the Commissioners are ex- officio members of the Tukwila City Council. 

1. 1. 2 The Executive Director is appointed by the District Commissioners and is responsible for the
overall administration of the District's operations. Managers are responsible to the Executive Director. 

Thus, our chain of command runs from the Board of Commissioners, to the Executive Director, to the

Managers, to Head or Lead Guards, to non - supervisory personnel. 

1. 2 Purpose /Scope of Employee Handbook

This manual is a general informational guide to the district' s current employment policies and practices. Any
department standard operating procedures needs to be consistent with these policies and approved in
advance by the Executive Director. This employee handbook can be accessed online on the Staff page of
the District website www.tukwilapool.org. 

1. 2. 1 The policies in this handbook are not intended to create a contract. The policies should not be

construed to constitute contractual obligations of any kind or a contract of employment between the District
and any employee. The provisions in the handbook have been developed at the discretion of management
and, except for the policy of employment -at -will, may be amended or cancelled at any time, at the sole
discretion of the District. 

1. 2. 2 The District reserves the right to amend, delete, supplement, or rescind any of the District's
personnel policies, as the district deems necessary and appropriate, without advance notice. The district
also reserves the right to deviate from these policies in individual situations, particularly in an emergency, 
in order to achieve its primary mission of providing orderly and cost efficient services to its customers. 

1. 2. 3 These practices and policies are not an express or implied contract or any type of promise
or guarantee of specific treatment in specific instances upon which any employee may rely. 

1. 2. 4 These personnel practices and policies apply to all District employees. 

1. 2. 5 These provisions replace all other existing policies and practices and may not be changed
or added to without the express written approval of the Board of Commissioners of the District. 

1. 3 At Will Employment

You became an employee at the District voluntarily and your employment is at will. "At will" means that you
are free to resign at any time, with or without cause. Likewise, " at will" means that the District may terminate
your employment at any time, with or without cause or advance notice, as long as we do not violate any
applicable federal or state law. 

Unless specific benefits or rights to the contrary are granted to an employee through resolutions, individual
employment contracts, employees are considered at -will employees and may be terminated from District
employment at any time, with or without cause and with or without notice. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 3
54



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

1. 4 Equal Employment Opportunity
The District is an equal employment opportunity employer. The District employs, retains, promotes, 
terminates and otherwise treats its employees on the basis of merit, qualifications, and competence, without

regard to any individual' s sex, race, color, religion, national origin, pregnancy, age, marital status, sexual
orientation, disability, or any other status protected by federal, state, or local law. The District provides
reasonable accommodation for qualified, disabled employees and applicants as required by law. Any alleged
act or complaint of discriminatory treatment by any District employee should be reported to the Executive
Director for appropriate investigation and action. 

1. 5 Work Place Harassment

Sexual or any other type of unlawful verbal, physical, visual harassment of co- workers, co- employees
and members of the public is absolutely forbidden. This includes harassment based on gender, sexual
orientation, race, religion, age, national origin, disability or any other legally protected status. All
employees must be sensitive to the feelings of others and must try not to act in a way that might be
considered harassment by someone else. 

1. 5. 1 Harassment can take many forms. Prohibited harassment includes, but is not limited to: 

Verbal ( e. g., racial, sexual or ethnic jokes, stereotypes and insults). 
Physical ( e. g., sexually suggestive or unwelcome touching or obscene gestures). 
Visual ( e. g., insulting cartoons, sexually suggestive or lewd pictures or photographs). 

1. 5. 2 Sexual harassment can include verbal behavior such as suggestive looks or leering; and
physical behavior such as pats or squeezes; repeatedly brushing against someone' s body; obscene or rude
sexual comments, jokes or suggestions; slang, names, or labels such as " honey," "sweetie," " boy," or "girl" 
that others find offensive; talking about or calling attention to another employee's body or sexual
characteristics in a negative or embarrassing way; displaying nude or sexual pictures, cartoons or calendars
in or on District property; invitation for dates which do not stop when the response is negative; continuing
unwelcome behavior after a co- worker has objected to that behavior; or blaming the victims of sexual
harassment for causing the problem. 

1. 5. 3 Conduct of this type is improper, and it may be illegal if: 
Submission to this conduct is either an explicit or implicit term or condition of employment; 

Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as a basis for employment decisions

affecting the person involved; or
The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual' s work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 

1. 5. 4 All employees are responsible to ensure a work place free from any type of harassment. If an
employee is aware of any instances of work place harassment or believes he /she is a victim of harassment, 
the employee should ask the offending employee to cease the conduct. If an employee is uncomfortable
doing this, or if the conduct does not stop, s /he should report the alleged act immediately to his /her
Supervisor. Alternatively, if his /her Supervisor is engaging in such conduct or if his /her Supervisor is
unavailable, the employee should immediately report the alleged harassment to the Executive Director. 

1. 5. 5 All complaints will be promptly and thoroughly investigated. Any employee who is found to
have harassed another employee will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, which could range
from a disciplinary warning to termination. 

1. 5. 6 No retaliation of any type will result from reporting instances of harassment or cooperating in
an investigation. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 4
55



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

1. 6 Work Place Violence

Work place violence is any verbal or physical action that is communicated or perceived as a threat, 
harassment, abuse, intimidation, or personal contact, that produces fear, causes bodily harm, or damage to
property. Even joking about violent acts is prohibited. Work place violence may involve family, friends, 
strangers, co- workers, elected officials, or members of the public. The District does not tolerate acts of

violence towards District employees or property. All acts of violence are treated seriously and each act of
violence will be dealt with promptly and appropriately using administrative, managerial, legal and disciplinary
actions to minimize risk to employees and property. 

1. 6. 1 All employees are responsible for refraining from participating in violent actions and for reporting to
their Supervisor or the Executive Director any threatening or dangerous situations that occur within the work
place or affect their work requirements. Employees who feel an immediate threat and cannot reach a

manager should call 911 and leave the area as soon as possible. Employees may not bring weapons of any
type into the workplace. 

1. 7 Workplace Ethics and Conduct

We expect the District employees to be ethical in their conduct. It affects our reputation and success. The

District requires employees to carefully follow all laws and regulations, and have the highest standards of
conduct and personal integrity. 

1. 7. 1 Our continued success depends on our customers' trust. Employees owe a duty to the District, 
our customers, and the public to act in ways that will earn the continued trust and confidence of the public. 

1. 7. 2 As an organization, the District will comply with all applicable laws and regulations. We expect
all directors, officers, Supervisors and employees to conduct business in accordance with the letter, spirit, 

and intent of all relevant laws and to not do anything that is illegal, dishonest, or unethical. 

1. 7. 3 If you use good judgment and follow high ethical principles, you will make the right decisions. 

However, if you are not sure if an action is ethical or proper, you should discuss the matter openly with
your supervisor. If necessary, you may also contact the Executive Director for advice and consultation. 

1. 7. 4 It is the responsibility of every District employee to comply with our policy of business ethics
and conduct. Employees who ignore or do not comply with this standard of business ethics and conduct
may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including possible termination of employment. 

1. 8 Immigration Law Compliance

The District is committed to employing only people who are United States citizens or who are aliens
legally authorized to work in the United States. We do not illegally discriminate because of a person' s
citizens or national origin. 

1. 8. 1 Because we comply with Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, every new employee at
the District is required to complete the Employment Eligibility Verification Form 1 - 9 and show documents that
prove identity and employment eligibility. 

1. 8. 2 If you leave the District and are rehired, you must complete another Form 1 - 9 if the previous

1 - 9 with the District is more than three years old, or if the original 1 - 9 is not accurate anymore, or if we no

longer have the original 1 - 9. 

Note: If you have questions or want information on the immigration laws, contact the Executive Director. If

you ask questions you will not be punished in any way. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 5
56



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

1. 9 Employee Personnel Records

A personnel file for each employee is maintained by the Executive Director or his /her designee, and access is
generally limited to the employee, the employee's Supervisor, the Executive Director unless broader disclosure
is required by law. Usually, an employee' s personnel file contains the employee's name, title and /or position
held, job description, department to which the employee is assigned, salary /pay -rate, changes in employment
status, training received, performance evaluations, personnel actions affecting the employee, including
discipline, and other pertinent information. 

1. 9. 1 Each employee may periodically review his /her personnel file. An employee may place
pertinent information in his /her personnel file with the approval of the Executive Director. An employee may
request removal of irrelevant or erroneous information in his /her personnel file. If the District denies the

employee' s request to remove the information, the employee may file a written rebuttal statement to be
placed in his /her file. 

1. 9. 2 Personnel files are kept confidential to the maximum extent permitted by law. Except for
routine verifications of employment, information from an employee' s personnel file will not be released to

the public, including the press, without a written request for specific information or a valid court order or
administrative agency request. 

1. 10 References

Usually the District does not give references, other than to confirm the dates of employment, last salary and
eligibility for re -hire, without the employee's prior written consent. Any requests for references should be
referred to Executive Director. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 6
57



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 2: Hours and Attendance

2. 1 Employment Status Definitions

2. 1. 1 Full -Time Employee - An employee who regularly works a minimum of 37. 5 hours a week on a
continuing basis. 

2. 1. 2 Part -Time Employee - An employee who regularly works less than 35 hours a week on a
continuing basis. 

2. 1. 3 Non - exempt Employee - An employee who is not exempt from the minimum wage, overtime, 

and timecard provisions of the wage and hour laws. Such employees receive an hourly wage and are
eligible for overtime pay at the rate of one and one -half times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in
excess of 40 hours in the work -week. 

2. 1. 4 Exempt Employee - An employee who is exempt from the minimum wage, overtime and

timecard provisions of the wage and hour laws. Exempt employees include supervisory, administrative, 
and professional employees who are paid on a salary basis. Some examples include the Executive
Director and Manager. When employees are hired, they will be informed of exempt status. 

2. 1. 5 Temporary /Seasonal Employee - An employee hired with a short -term expectation of
employment to cover during periods of peak workload, extended employee absences and the like. 
Temporary employees generally may not be employed for more than six months. 

2. 2 Working Hours
Different work schedules may be established by the District to meet job assignments and to provide
necessary District services. 

2. 1. 1 Each supervisor will notify his /her employees regarding their specific working hours. 

2. 1. 2 All employees work the hours specified by their supervisors. 

2. 3 Overtime

Non - exempt employees are entitled to additional compensation, either in cash or compensatory time off, 
when they work more than the maximum number of hours during a work period. 

2. 3. 1 All overtime must be authorized in advance by the employee' s supervisor or the
Executive Director. 

2. 3. 2 Overtime pay is calculated at one and one -half times a non - exempt employee' s rate of pay for
all time worked in excess of 40 hours during a work -week and for working over eight hours in a workday, 
unless an employee is regularly scheduled to work more than eight hours a day ( i. e. a 4/ 10 shift, or part - 
time employees working flex schedules). 

2. 3. 3 For purposes of overtime computations, the District's workweek begins on Monday mornings
at one minute past Sunday midnight ( 12: 01 a. m.). 

2. 3. 4 When computing overtime, paid time off is not counted as hours worked. 

2. 3. 5 Exempt employees do not receive overtime. 

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 7
Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014

58



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

2. 4 Attendance

Punctual and consistent attendance is an essential function of every employee's job and a condition of
continued employment. Employees are expected to work a complete workday. Each employee is expected
to be at their place of work, dressed in their appropriate uniform and be prepared to work at the designated

starting and continue to work until the designated quitting time. Employees are not expected to be absent

from work without making prior arrangements with their supervisor. 

2. 4. 1 Employees unable to work or unable to report to work on time should notify their Supervisor or
his /her designee as soon as possible, ordinarily before the workday begins or within a reasonable time of
the employee' s usual starting time, as determined by the employee's Supervisor, and state the reason for
being late or being unable to report for work. If an absence continues beyond one day, the employee is
responsible for reporting in each day. Any unauthorized absence, including tardiness, will be considered
an absence without pay and may be cause for disciplinary action, including possible termination. 

2. 4. 2 Employees are expected to be at work even during inclement weather. Supervisors may
allow employees to be late or leave early during severe weather conditions. Hours not worked will not be
compensated ( with exceptions for paid holidays and PTO). 

2. 5 Emergency or Maintenance Closures
All District offices and activities are to be open and in operation during established working hours. However, 
there may be times when the management finds it necessary to close the facility due to an emergency or to
perform necessary maintenance or repair work. 

2. 5. 1 Unless otherwise notified, scheduled employees are still expected to report to work in a timely
manner, even during a closure. Should emergency conditions prevent District employees from reporting to
work, it is the employee' s responsibility to contact his /her supervisor to indicate anticipated absence from
work, or late arrival to work, and the reason for such absence or tardiness. 

2. 6 Breaks and Meal Periods

Employees are allowed a meal period which usually commences between two to five hours from the
beginning of the employee's shift. In most circumstances, meal periods are scheduled by the employee' s
supervisor. 

2. 6. 1 If an employee works three or more hours longer than the employee' s normal workday, 
the employee is usually allowed at least one 30 minute meal period prior to or during the extended
work period. 

2. 6. 2 In most circumstances, the District tries to provide employees at least a ten - minute paid break

period for each four hours of working time. To the extent practical, the District endeavors to schedule rest
periods as near as possible to the midpoint of the workday, as long as the rest period does not interfere with
District business or service to the public. Employees should not work more than three hours without having
either a rest break or a meal break. If you are not getting your breaks, you should inform your supervisor. 

2. 7 Call Back

All employees are subject to call back in emergencies or as needed by the District to provide necessary
services to the public. A refusal to respond to a call back may be grounds for disciplinary action, including
possible termination. Employees called back to duty are paid their appropriate rate of pay for hours
worked ( and overtime rate, if applicable.) 

2. 7. 1 Non - exempt employees who leave work and are called back to work after completing their regular
days shift are paid in most circumstances for a minimum of one hour worked. Exempt employees are not

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014
Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014

59

Page 8



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures

eligible for call -out pay. 

2. 8 Time Reporting
Maintaining accurate time records is essential in computing employee pay, ensuring compliance with laws and
regulations, and providing accurate cost information for the District. 

2. 8. 1 Each employee is responsible for completing his /her own time record as required. 

2. 8. 2 Reported times should be rounded off to the nearest 15 minute increments. 

2. 8. 3 Supervisors are responsible for ensuring that the time records are maintained and submitted to
the District bookkeeper. 

2. 8. 4 Falsification of time records is grounds for disciplinary action, including possible termination. 

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014
Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014

60

Page 9



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 3: Employment Practices

3. 1 New Employee Orientation

New employees usually participate in a new employee orientation to the position. Typically, new employee
orientation includes information about the District' s organization and services, safety work rules, personnel
policies, departmental rules and procedures, completion of payroll forms and introduction to other District

personnel. 

3. 2 Customer Relations

Community residents each pay a special tax called a levy for the privilege of having a community pool. They
are just as important to us as our customers or patrons. Every employee represents the District to the patrons
and the public and they judge all of us by how we treat them. One of the highest priorities at the District is to
help any patron or potential patron in every way possible. Nothing is more important that being courteous, 
friendly, prompt, and helpful to our patrons and community. Your contacts with the public, your telephone
manners, and any communications you send out reflect not just on you but also in the professionalism of the
District. Good customer relations translates into long -term stability for the pool. 

3. 3 Staff Supervision

The District holds itself to a high standard of performance and therefore makes every effort to provide high quality
support and supervision to District employees. Clear communication, respect for all, and appropriate staff

development are key to these efforts and every District employee with a supervisory role is expected to personify
those high expectations. 

3. 3. 1 Candidates must attend a supervisor skills class and /or demonstrate the knowledge and ability to
utilize best practices in personnel supervision prior to being hired for or promoted to a supervisory role. 

3. 3. 1 Each employee shall have a direct supervisor who will be expected to provide steady support, 
professional development and general guidance to that employee. Supervisors are accountable for the

performance of each of their assigned employees and are encouraged to give each employee their best effort, 

asking for help whenever necessary. 

3. 3. 2 Supervisors shall make time to regularly meet with each assigned employee to discuss issues or
topics relating to the performance of the employee' s duties no fewer than 4 times per year. Written notes
capturing the general discussion topics and agreed upon outcomes from each meeting shall be kept and
retained by the supervisor. 

3. 3. 3 The employee is expected to inform their supervisor as soon as possible of any challenges they
face in the performance of their duties and the supervisor is expected to work with them to find solutions. 

3. 3. 4 The supervisor is expected to inform assigned employees as soon as possible of challenges that

may be impacting the performance of their duties and the employee is expected to work with their supervisor to
find solutions. 

3. 3. 5 The supervisor shall provide the employee with a written performance evaluation a minimum of one

time per year. 

3. 3. 6 When a supervisor knows they will be unavailable for more than 5 days due to a planned absence, 
it is incumbent upon them to arrange for alternate support for their assigned employees during their absence. 

3. 3. 7 When a supervisor becomes unavailable due to an unplanned absence that lasts longer than 5

days, it is up to the supervisor' s supervisor to either step into the breach personally or identify an alternate
supervisor to support the affected employees. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 10
61



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

3. 4 Promotions and Transfers

All employees are eligible for promotion, transfer to another equivalent position or voluntary demotion. To
be considered for another position, an employee must possess the qualifications for the vacant position, 

unless the Executive Director determines that waiving those requirements is in the best interest of the
District. 

3. 4. 1 The District encourages current District employees to apply for vacant District positions for which they
are qualified. Promotions are based on the supervisor's recommendation, work force requirements, 

performance evaluations, job descriptions and related District requirements. 

3. 4. 2 A promotion is an appointment of an employee to another position with a higher pay -rate and /or
expanded responsibilities. The amount of any pay increase and /or specific responsibilities are to be
decided by the District. A promoted employee may be demoted or terminated from the new position if the
District determines, in its sole discretion, that the employee is not satisfactorily performing in the new
position. 

3. 4. 3 The District, in its sole discretion, may fill a vacant position by transferring a qualified employee to the
position. An employee may request a transfer to a vacant position by notifying the Executive Director in
writing. 

3. 5 Layoffs

The District may lay off employees due to lack of work, lack of funds, or for other financial or organizational
reasons. In determining who is to be laid off, consideration should be given to individual performance and
the qualifications required for remaining jobs. Prior to such action, the District may endeavor to place
affected employees into another available position for which they are qualified, as determined by the
District, within the District. 

3. 5. 1 Prior to a layoff, the District will try to provide affected employees at least two weeks' notice of the
pending layoff or pay in lieu of notice. 

3. 5. 2 During the 12 month period following a layoff, the District may rehire a laid off employee if a
suitable position becomes available for which the employee is qualified and the former employee has

requested, in writing, to be considered for re -hire. 

3. 6 Reclassification

If, based on the needs of the District, the duties and responsibilities of a particular position are substantially
changed, the District may reclassify a position. If the reclassification places the position in a higher salary
range, the employee' s rate may be adjusted to the next higher step. If the reclassification places the position
in a lower salary range, the employee's rate of pay may be adjusted to the pay step in the new range that is
nearest to the employee' s former rate of pay. 

3. 7 Resignation

Employees are encouraged to submit written notice of resignation to their Supervisor at least ten working
days ( two calendar weeks) prior to the effective date of their resignation. The Executive Director may
schedule an exit interview, if appropriate. When an employee resigns the employee is expected to return all

District property, including uniforms, equipment and keys. Failure to do so may delay release of the
employee' s final pay check. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 11
62



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 4: Compensation

4. Compensation Policy
The District wishes to practice transparency and fairness in regard to employee pay rates, offering equal pay for
equal work. Therefore, each position or job title within the District is assigned a defined salary or pay -rate that is
applied to all employees holding that position or job title. Pay rates for each position are outlined in the District's
salary and wage schedule, which is usually approved annually by the District Board of Commissioners. 

4. 1 Employee Pay Rates
4. 1. 1 Each position' s pay -rate is reviewed periodically to ensure that it remains competitive with other
comparable positions. 

4. 1. 2 Pay -rates are based on the expectations of the position, reflect levels of authority and
responsibility, required certifications or training if any, and other skills as needed to perform the
expectations of the position with a great deal of competency. Within available resources, the District's
compensation plan is generally competitive with other comparable employers in similar job markets. 

4. 1. 3 From time to time the District Board of Commissioners may grant cost -of- living adjustments, raising
the salaries of all positions by a specified amount or for all employees within a defined position. 

4. 1. 4 Pay increases are contingent on satisfactory performance. If an employee' s performance is
unsatisfactory, a scheduled pay increase may be deferred for a stipulated period of time or until the
employee' s job performance is satisfactory. 

4.2 Paydays

To be determined.] 

4. 3 Payroll Records

To be determined.] 

4.4 Deductions

Some regular deductions from the employee's earnings are required by law; other deductions are specifically
authorized by the employee. The District withholds from the employee' s paycheck those deductions required
by law and any voluntary deductions authorized by the employee. 

4. 5 Paycheck Errors

The District does its best to provide you with proper pay for all hours worked. Should you notice an error in
your pay or an improper deduction, please bring it to the attention of your Supervisor right away so that we
can check into it and correct it if appropriate. Should we discover an overpayment, the employee will be

notified as soon as possible and the overpayment will be taken out of the next paycheck. 

4.6 Expense Reimbursement

Employees and officials may be reimbursed for normal and reasonable travel and other expenses incurred
for a Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District business related purpose. Travel costs are defined as expenses

for transportation to and from a location other than the employee' s primary work - place, lodging, meals and
related items incurred by employees who are traveling for District business purpose only. 

4. 6. 1 Per Diem

The District does not reimburse business expenses on a per diem basis. Travel expense and business

expense reimbursement is based on actual expenses incurred. Expenses are reimbursed based on a

TPMPD Reimbursement and Travel Report Form filed within 30 days after completion of the trip and
accompanied by original receipts for each expense reported. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 12
63



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

4. 6.2 Receipts

No claim for reimbursement shall be paid unless it is accompanied by a bona fide vendor' s receipt. Should a
receipt be lost or not be obtainable, an employee certification signed by the Executive Director will serve as a
substitute for a receipt. Such receipt or certification should show the date, a description of the purchase, 

vendor identification, amount paid, and an explanation for the lack of a receipt should that be the case. 

4. 6.3 Meals

Meals may be reimbursed by the District only when associated with official business. Payment for meals
including sensible tip), is reimbursable as a reasonable and necessary cost for such service. All employees and

officials claiming reimbursement for meals consumed while on District business must use the TPMPD
Reimbursement and Travel Report Form and provide original receipts. 

4. 6.4 Reimbursable business expenses: 

Personal vehicle: Expenses shall be reimbursed for travel at the current maximum rate allowed by
the United States Internal Revenue Service ( IRS) to and from a location other than the employee' s

primary work - place. 

Air travel: The District will reimburse the cost of standard airfare ( coach) only. The lowest available
discount airfare or customary standard airfare ( coach or equivalent) must be purchased. Reservations
should be made in advance to guarantee the ticket is purchased at the lowest available discount fare. 

Accommodation savings of the traveler may offset additional cost incurred by purchasing the ticket at
a higher price. 

Automobile rental expenses: Automobile rental expenses will be reimbursed to the extent they are
reasonable and appropriate. A receipt must support such expenses. Automobile insurance will not be

reimbursed for domestic automobile rental, and should be declined. Additional automobile insurance

should be purchased when renting an automobile for foreign travel. 
Alcoholic beverages: Alcoholic beverages are not allowed as a reimbursable travel expense. 

Incidental expenses: Reasonable, incidental charges such as gratuities are reimbursable and

need not be supported by a receipt. 
Laundry: Only services which cannot be deferred until completion of the trip may be claimed as a
reimbursable expense. 

Lodging /Meals: Itemized receipts for all lodging expense must accompany the TPMPD
Reimbursement & Travel Report Form. 

Note: Employees are encouraged to seek out reasonably priced accommodations to minimize the cost to the
District. Costs associated with upgrades in accommodations will not be reimbursed unless standard

accommodations are not available. 

4.6.5 The TPMPD Reimbursement & Travel Repot Form

The TPMPD Reimbursement & Travel Report Form should be submitted within 30 days from the end of the

travel for all overnight travel. Reimbursement for meals is based on actual expenses. If expenses include the

cost of meals for other persons, the form must list names of individuals, the purpose, time, place and amount. 

The cost of Conferences, seminars, Training Courses, and Classes related to employee training and training
materials should also be listed on the TPMPD Reimbursement & Travel Report Form and submitted within

30 days of the end of the event. 

4. 6.6 Cash Advance

The employee or official may request a cash travel advance for the estimated expenses to be incurred
which are not to be paid directly by the District or by District credit card. To receive a cash advance, the
traveler must make the request for the advance a reasonable time in advance of the date of travel. If a

TPMPD Reimbursement & Travel Report Form is not filed within thirty (30) days of the date the travel is
completed, the travel advance will be deducted from the next payroll check. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 13
64



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

4. 6.7 Non - Travel Reimbursement of Expenses

Same day travel and meals consumed by the District employees during meetings and other functions, 
which conduct official District business or serve to benefit the District are reimbursable to the

employee. 

Meetings or functions wherein a District function, public purpose, training or District program is
served or furthered and wherein the Executive Director has expressly approved the meeting as
such, the District may incur such costs directly or as a reimbursement to employees who have
incurred such costs on behalf of the District. 

4. 7 Compensation Upon Termination

When an employee' s employment with the District is terminated, the employee receives the following
compensation: 

4. 7. 1 Regular wages for all hours worked up to the time of termination that have not already been paid; or

4. 7. 2 Any overtime, compensatory time, or paid time off. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 14
65



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 5: Performance Evaluations and Training

5. 1 Performance Evaluation Policy
To achieve the District' s goal to train, promote and retain the best qualified employee for every job, the District
conducts periodic performance evaluations for every employee. Performance evaluations are designed to

ensure that each employee is in the position that best fits their skills, therefore an employee' s position may be
adjusted based on the outcome of the evaluation. 

5. 1. 1 In most circumstances, employees are evaluated by their supervisor at least once every 12
months. Shorter evaluations periods may be done at the supervisor' s discretion on an individual basis. 

5. 1. 2 The evaluation is part of an employee' s personnel record and may be a factor in determining
whether the employee is to be promoted, transferred, demoted, laid off, or terminated. 

5. 1. 3 Performance evaluations should be used to identify training needs, potential for advancement
or ability to improve. They are not meant to be the primary method of communicating a performance
issue. If an employee' s performance is substandard, the supervisor has an obligation to inform the

employee immediately and to clearly communicate the necessary improvement expected. The outcome of
that communication can be incorporated into a performance evaluation. 

5.2 Training Policy
The District seeks, within the limits of available resources, to offer training to increase an employee' s skills, 
knowledge and abilities directly related to District employment, to obtain or maintain required licenses and
certifications, and to develop staff resources. Opportunities may include, but are not limited to: on- the -job
training, in -house workshops, and seminars sponsored by other agencies or organizations. 

5. 2. 1 The District may pay for employees to attend an approved supervisory skills training or class at
the discretion of the Executive Director. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 15
66



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 6: Benefits

6. Benefits Policy
The Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District provides certain positions with an Optional Benefits package and the

ability to earn paid time off (PTO). Positions currently eligible to receive these benefits include: 
Executive Director

Aquatics Manager

Assistant Aquatics Manager

No other positions are currently eligible to receive optional benefits or paid time off (PTO). 

6. 1 Optional Benefits

The District will designate an allowance for each eligible employee which we intend them to use at their

discretion to purchase Health Insurance, Dental Insurance, Vision Insurance, Child or Elder Care, or

Disability Benefits as they choose. 

6. 1. 1 The benefit amount will be reviewed by the District and potentially adjusted annually and all or
a portion of it may be eliminated at any time. Amounts are calculated based on the employee' s salary or
pay -rate and may be pro -rated for part -time employees. 

6. 1. 2 This allowance is distributed in lieu of traditional employee benefits and is not defined as salary
for the employee, however they will be taxed on the funds as income. 

6. 1. 3 Each employee provided with a benefit allowance is expected to maintain, at minimum, up -to- 
date medical coverage as required by the Affordable Care Act. Employees who do not maintain this
coverage risk losing their benefit allowance. 

6. 2 Paid Holidays

The Tukwila Pool is closed on the following holidays: December 25th and the fourth Thursday in November
Thanksgiving Day). 

6. 2. 1 Exempt employees are not expected to work on these Holidays, but will be compensated in the

usual manner. 

6. 2. 2 Non - exempt or hourly employees will not be scheduled to work on stated Holidays. If, due to an

emergency, they are required to report to work, they will be compensated at double their usual hourly rate for
the time worked. 

6. 3 Paid Time Off

Paid time off (PTO) may be accrued and used by an employee for any purpose, including vacation, sick
days, or personal time. 

6. 3. 1 Eligible employees accrue PTO as follows: 

Years of

Service

Non - Exempt Accrual Rate Exempt Accrual Rate Maximum accruable

1 8 hours for every 173 hours worked 1 day per month 12 days

2 8. 64 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 08 days per month 13 days

3 9. 28 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 16 days per month 14 days

4 10 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 25 days per month 15 days

5 10. 64 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 33 days per month 16 days

6 11. 28 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 41 days per month 17 days

7+ 12 hours for every 173 hours worked 1. 5 days per month 18 days

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 16
67



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

6. 3. 2 PTO accrual is calculated on a monthly basis beginning with an employee' s first date of
employment and is not pro -rated for partial months. 

6. 3. 3 If an employee plans to use PTO for personal or vacation time, it must be approved in advance

by their supervisor. Requests that have a negative impact on the operations or other employees may not
be approved. 

6. 3. 4 Exempt employees must submit a written request (email is acceptable) to utilize PTO. The

request must be sent to the designated bookkeeper /payroll specialist before the close of the pay period to
which the request applies, and it must specify exactly how much time is being applied toward PTO. 

6. 3. 5 Once the maximum accrual of PTO is achieved, an employee will not be able to accrue

additional PTO. 

6. 3. 6 PTO may only be transferred to another employee with approval from the Executive Director. 

6. 4 Family And Medical Leave
The District complies with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ( "FMLA ") and all

applicable state laws related to family and medical leave. 

6. 4. 1 The FMLA provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave every 12 months to eligible employees for
certain family and medical reasons. To be eligible an employee must have worked for the District at least
one year, defined as 1, 250 hours over the previous 12 months. 

6. 4. 2 Reasons for Taking Leave
Unpaid FMLA leave may be granted for any of the following reasons: 

To care for a child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care. 

To care for an employee's spouse, son, daughter or parent who has a serious health condition. 

For a serious health condition that makes an employee unable to perform the essential functions of

his /her job. 

To care for an employee' s spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin undergoing medical treatment as
a member of the armed forces, National Guard or Reserves. 

For "any qualifying exigency" (as the Secretary of Labor shall by regulation determine) arising out of the
call to duty of an employee' s spouse, son, daughter or parent. 

Leave to care for a child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care must be concluded within 12

months of the birth or placement. 

6. 4. 3 Under some circumstances, FMLA leave may be taken intermittently, which means taking leave
in blocks of time, or by reducing an employee' s normal weekly or daily work schedule or if medically
necessary because of a serious health condition. If an employee is granted intermittent leave or works a

reduced schedule, he /she may be required to provide a written certification from his /her health care provider
that includes the projected dates and duration of treatment and a statement of the medical necessity for
taking intermittent leave or working a reduced schedule. 

6. 4. 3. 1 The District may temporarily transfer an employee to an available alternative position with
equivalent pay and benefits if the alternative position would better accommodate the intermittent or

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 17
68



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

reduced work schedule. 

6. 4. 3. 2 If FMLA leave is taken for the birth or placement for adoption or foster care of a child, use of

intermittent leave is subject to the District's prior approval. 

6. 4. 4 Substitution of Paid Time Off (PTO): The District may require an employee to use accrued
PTO as part of the employee' s FMLA entitlement. For example, if an employee wishes to take 12 weeks of

FMLA leave and he /she has accrued two weeks of PTO, they must first use their PTO and would then have
ten weeks of unpaid FMLA leave available. 

6. 4. 5 Advance Notice and Medical Certifications: 

The District requires that an employee provide the District with advance leave notice, with medical

certification of the need for a leave related to a serious health condition, and with medical certification of

the employee' s fitness to return to duty after medical leave. Taking leave, or reinstatement after leave, 
may be denied if the following requirements are not met: 

An employee must give the District at least 30 days' advance notice of his /her request for leave if

the reason for the leave is foreseeable based on an expected birth, placement for adoption or

foster care, or planned medical treatment. If 30 days' notice is not practicable, then the employee

must give the District notice as soon as practicable. If the employee does not give the District 30

days' advance notice, and if the employee is able to foresee the need for the leave and the

approximate date of the leave, the District may deny the employee' s request for leave until at least
30 days after the date the employee gives the District such notice. 

The District requires that employees provide a medical certification to support a request for leave

because of a serious health condition ( the employee' s, employee' s child' s, spouse' s or parent's) 

whenever the leave is expected to extend beyond three consecutive working days or will involve
intermittent or part -time leave. The District may require second or third opinions, at the District's
option and expense. 

The District requires employees provide a medical certification of fitness for duty to return to work
after a medical leave that extends beyond ten consecutive working days, or that involves
substance abuse, or where the medical condition and the employee' s job are such that the

District believes the employee may present a serious risk of injury to the employee or others if
the employee is not fit to return to work. 

6. 4. 6 Periodic Reporting: If an employee takes FMLA leave for more than ten consecutive days, 

the District requires that the employee report in, to his /her Supervisor or designee, at least every two
weeks regarding the employee' s status and intent to return to work, unless a different requirement is set
by the Supervisor. 

6. 4. 7 Couples Employed by Us: If both the employee and the employee' s spouse work for the
District and the employee requests leave for the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child, to care

for anew child, or to care for a sick parent, the total annual FMLA leave available to both individuals for

those purposes is 12 weeks. 

6. 4. 8 Determining Leave Availability: FMLA leave is available for up to 12 weeks during a 12 -month
period. For purposes of calculating leave availability, the " 12 -month period" is a rolling 12 -month period
measured backwards from the date the employee uses any FMLA leave. 

6. 4. 9 Leave Related to Pregnancy: If an employee takes leave for pregnancy disability, the leave
taken while the employee is physically unable to work will be in addition to the employee' s annual 12 -week
FMLA leave allowance. For example, if an employee works until her due date and then the physician

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 18
69



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

certifies a six -week disability period, the employee could take as much as 18 weeks of leave. However, 

insurance benefits would only be continued at the District' s expense for 12 weeks. After that the
employee would need to arrange to self -pay benefit premiums. 

6. 4. 10 Reinstatement Rights: If an employee takes leave under this policy, he /she usually will be
able to return to the same or a similar job with equivalent status, pay, and benefits, and one which entails
substantially equivalent skill, effort, responsibility and authority. 

6. 4. 11 Worker's Compensation: The District considers leave taken as a result of an on- the -job injury
covered by state industrial insurance and resulting in a " serious health condition" as leave under this
policy. 

6. 5 Administrative Leave

On a case -by -case basis, the District may place an employee on administrative leave with pay for an
indefinite period of time, as determined by the Executive Director to be in the best interests of the District, 
such as during the pendency of an investigation or other administrative proceeding. 

6. 6 Military Leave
The District provides military leave for employees while performing military service in accordance with federal
and state law. Military service includes active military duty and reserve or National Guard training. An
employee must provide his /her Supervisor with copies of his /her military orders as soon as possible after
he /she receives those orders. Reinstatement upon return from military service is determined in accordance
with applicable federal and state law. 

6. 6. 1 Family Leave Due to a Call to Active Duty. This benefit provides 12 weeks of FMLA leave for
any qualifying exigency ( as the Secretary [of Labor] shall, by regulation, determine) arising out of the fact

that the spouse, or a son, daughter, or parent of the employee is on active duty (or has been notified of an
impending call or order to active duty) in the Armed Forces in support of a contingency operation." The
following type of exigencies may qualify: ( DOL Rulemaking pending) 

6. 6. 1. 1 Making arrangements for childcare; 
Making financial and legal arrangements to address the service member's absence; 
Attending counseling related to the active duty of a service member; 
Attending official ceremonies or programs where the participation of the family member is
requested by the military; 
Attending farewell or arrival arrangements for a service member; and
Attending to affairs caused by the missing status or death of a service member. 

6. 6. 2 Washington' s Family Military Leave Act provides that during a period of military conflict, an
employee who is the spouse of a member of the Armed Forces, National Guard or Reserves who has

been called to active duty or who has been deployed is entitled to 15 days of unpaid leave per
deployment. An employee who seeks to take family military leave must provide the employer with notice
of his /her intent to take leave within five business days of receiving official notice of an impending call or
order to active duty or notice of a leave from deployment. Employees "may elect" to use any accrued
leave as part of this family military leave. The use of paid leave is at the employee' s option. 

6. 7 Domestic Violence Leave

Leave is available to employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or have a
family member (spouse, children, parents, parents -in -law, grandparents, or "a person with whom the
employee has a dating relationship. ") who is a victim of such abuse. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 19
70



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

6. 7. 1 An eligible employee may take " reasonable" leave, including leave on an intermittent or
reduced- schedule basis, to engage in specified remedial activities relating to the abuse, including: 
participating in legal proceedings; seeking medical treatment or mental health counseling; obtaining
social services; or taking other actions to increase the safety of the employee and her /his family
members. 

6. 7. 2 The District may request verification that the employee or her /his family member is a victim of
abuse, and that the leave is for one of the covered remedial activities. Verification is satisfied by one or
more of the following: ( 1) a police report indicating the employee or family member was a victim of abuse; 
2) a court order protecting the employee or family member; (3) documentation from an attorney, clergy

member, medical provider, or other professional from whom assistance was sought; or (4) the employee' s

own written statement that s /he or a family member is a victim and needs the leave to seek assistance. The
District will maintain the employee' s provided information as confidential and will not require the employee to

disclose information beyond the verification material listed above. 

6. 7. 3 Pay and Benefits during Leave. The employee may elect to use sick leave, compensatory, or
other paid time off, or may take unpaid leave. To the extent allowed by law (for example, by the applicable
benefits plan), the District will maintain the employee' s health care coverage as if the employee had not

taken leave. 

6. 7. 4 The employee will be restored to the position s /he held before the leave commenced, or

to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of
employment. 

6. 8 Other Leaves of Absence With Pay
6. 8. 1 Bereavement Leave. Three days' leave may be granted for the death of an employee' s
immediate family or household member. " Immediate family" includes the employee' s spouse, child, parent, 
sibling, parent -in -law, son or daughter -in -law. Additional leave may be approved beyond the allotted three
days, but may not exceed a total of nine days. Any days ( up to six) beyond the original three days will be
charged, as determined by the Executive Director, to the employee's accrued, but unused PTO, or if neither
is available, will be unpaid. 

6. 8. 2 Jury Duty. If an Exempt employee is called for jury duty or is subpoenaed as a witness, the
employee receives his /her regular rate of pay while serving on jury duty. An employee released from jury
duty for part of a day should call his /her supervisor for instructions. An employee receiving a jury summons
should inform his /her department as soon as possible so that arrangements may be made to cover for the
employee. 

6.9 Workers Compensation

Regular employees who are injured on the job and file for Worker's Compensation may use accumulated
PTO while the claim is being processed. Upon receiving payment from the Worker's Compensation carrier, 
the employee may sign the check over to the District, and any PTO used by the employee will be reinstated
to the employee' s account on a pro -rated basis. Employees may use PTO to supplement their time loss
payments up to the equivalent of their usual hours or salary. 

6. 10 Education Training
The District may agree to pay or reimburse employees for pre- authorized job - related training. To be eligible, 
the employee must demonstrate that: 

The training is necessary for improving skills to perform or enhance present work or to qualify the
employee for promotion; 

The money is budgeted in the operating budget; 
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 20
71



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures

It is in the District' s best interest to pay for this training; and
District services may be improved by authorizing the training. 

The employee should make his /her request in writing to his /her Supervisor who forwards it, with comments, to
the Executive Director for approval. Employees taking courses that are graded must earn at least a C or
equivalent in order to receive reimbursement. The District reimburses for tuition and fees only. Employees
are generally responsible for books and any other costs associated with the class. 

6. 11 Membership in Professional and Technical Societies
District employees are encouraged to participate in technical and professional societies. These activities are

considered a benefit to the District and to the employee through additional knowledge or personal

associations gained through the membership. The District, through the budgeting process, will select what
fees and dues it might pay for its employees' membership in technical and professional societies. For any
organization for which the District pays the dues, the District address should be used on all mail. All

magazines and publications received as a part of that membership should be made available for all
employees to use. 

6. 12Professional and Technical Registration

The District encourages professional and technical registration by providing the necessary experience
under the direction of registered professionals, and assumes that each qualified individual will want to

achieve professional status at the earliest opportunity. The District may pay fees for professional and
technical certificates and licenses for its employees as determined by the District in its sole discretion. 
These requests should be sent to the Executive Director. 

6. 13 Staff use of the Facility
All employees are eligible for a TPMPD swim pass, which entitles that employee to the same privilege as an

annual family pass holder. 

6. 13. 1 If the employment is terminated or the employee has not worked one shift per calendar month, 

the pass is void and must be surrendered. Temporary or substitute employees retain the use of his /her
employee pass only during the calendar month he /she works. 

6. 13. 2 Any inappropriate or unprofessional conduct while off -duty at Tukwila Pool is grounds for
discipline up to and including termination. 

6. 13. 3 These privileges are extended to immediate family members of employees, but are not
extended to family members who are not dependents or do not live with the employee. 

6. 13. 4 All employees may purchase Tukwila Pool sale items that are on the shelf at 10% off the

current purchase price, plus tax, excluding vending items

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 21
72



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 7: Drugs and Alcohol

7. Drugs and Alcohol Policy
The District has a significant interest in the health and safety of its employees and the patrons of the pool. In

furtherance of that interest, the District will take those steps necessary to ensure that its employees perform
their duties and responsibilities free of the influence of drugs and alcohol. 

7. 1 Prohibited Conduct

The following conduct regarding alcohol and drug use or abuse is prohibited: 

7. 1. 1 Alcohol Possession and On -Duty Use of Alcohol: An employee may not possess or consume
alcohol while on duty, including consuming or using alcohol prior to reporting to work or during breaks or meal
periods. An employee may not report for or remain on duty while under the influence of alcohol in any way. 

7. 1. 1 Pre -Duty Use of Alcohol: An on -call employee who consumes alcohol within four hours of
being called in must acknowledge the use of alcohol and may not report for duty. 

7. 1. 2 Use of Drugs: An employee may not report for duty or remain on duty when the employee has
used an illegal or legal drug or drugs, except when the use is pursuant to written instructions of a
physician notifying the employee that the substance does not adversely affect the employee's ability to
safely perform their job. Employees who are taking a prescription or over - the - counter medication that
may impair their ability to perform their duties safely must report this to their supervisor and will not be
scheduled to work until such time as they are no longer required to take the medication. The employee
is responsible for providing the District with written notice from their physician or pharmacist with respect
to the effects of all medication. 

7. 1. 3 Possession, Transfer or Sale: No employee may possess, transfer or sell drugs or alcohol
while employed by and working for the District. 

7. 2 Removal from Duty
If removed from duty based on reasonable suspicion of alcohol or drug use the employee may not return to
work for a minimum of 24 hours. 

7. 3 Testing
Use of prohibited substances may be determined by a supervisor based on behavior, odor, or a test if
necessary. 

7. 3. 1 Reasonable Suspicion Testing: Employees are required to submit to a drug and /or alcohol test
whenever District personnel reasonably suspect that the requirements of this policy ( except the prohibitions
against possession, transfer or sale of alcohol) may have been or are presently being violated. In most
circumstances, referrals for testing are based on contemporaneous, specific observations. Such referrals

are made by the employee's supervisor. 

7. 3. 2 No employee may refuse to submit to an alcohol or drug test as directed by the District. 
Refusal to submit to a test is considered the same as a positive test result. A refusal to submit includes, 

but is not limited to: 

A failure to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid medical explanation after the employee
has received notice of the requirement for breath testing as required by the District; 
Failure to provide adequate urine for drug testing without a valid medical explanation after the
employee has received notice of the requirement for urine testing as required by the District; or
Failure to cooperate in any part of the testing process or engaging in conduct that obstructs the

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 22
73



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures

testing process. 

7. 4 Confidentiality and Record Retention
All records related to drug and alcohol testing are maintained by the Executive Director or his /her designee in
a secure location with controlled access. These records are kept separate from records pertaining to all
other employees. 

7. 5 Consequences of Engaging in Prohibited Conduct or Positive Drug or Alcohol Tests
7. 5. 1 Discipline: Employees are subject to appropriate disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment if: 

The employee tests positive for a drug or drugs; 
Results from an alcohol test indicate a blood alcohol level of 0. 02 or greater; and /or, 

The employee has engaged in prohibited conduct as outlined in Section 7. 2. 

The District will endeavor to advise an employee, regardless of any disciplinary action taken, of resources
available to the employee in evaluating or resolving problems associated with drug use or alcohol misuse. 

7. 6 Voluntary Referral
The District supports employees who volunteer for treatment of alcohol or drug abuse. Employees are

encouraged to seek treatment voluntarily. In most instances, any employee who comes forth and notifies the
District of alcohol or drug abuse problems usually will be given the assistance extended to employees with any
other illness. In addition, voluntarily seeking assistance does not excuse any failure to comply with all of the
provisions of this policy or other requirements of the District. 

Paid time off or leave of absence without pay may be granted for treatment and rehabilitation as with other
illnesses. Confidentiality of information will be maintained as much as possible at all times. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 23
74



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 8: Employees Responsibilities

8. Policy on Employee Responsibilities
District employees are expected to represent the District to the public in a professional manner, which is

courteous, efficient and helpful. Employees must maintain a clean and neat appearance appropriate to

their work assignment, as determined by their position and supervisor. 

8. 1 Uniforms

The District may furnish or pay for clothing required by the District as finances allow. If not, the employee
is required to provide their own clothing pursuant to their supervisor's instructions. 

8. 2 Standards of Professional Conduct

Since the proper working relationship between employees and the District depends on each employee's
on -going job performance and behavior, the District has established certain minimum standards of
professional conduct. Among the District's expectations are: Basic tact and courtesy towards the public
and fellow employees; adherence to District practices, procedures, safety rules and safe work practices; 
compliance with directions from supervisors; preserving and protecting the District's equipment, grounds, 
facilities and resources; and providing orderly and cost efficient services to its citizens. 

8. 3 Outside Employment and Conflicts of Interest

Full time employees may not, directly or indirectly, engage in any outside employment or financial interest
which may conflict, in the District' s opinion, with the best interests of the District or interfere with the
employee' s ability to perform his /her assigned District job. Examples include, but are not limited to, outside

employment which: 

Prevents the employee from being available for work beyond normal working hours, such as
emergencies or peak work periods, when such availability is a regular part of the employee's job; 
Is conducted during the employee's work hours; 
Utilizes District telephones, computers, supplies, or any other resources, facilities or
equipment; 

Is employment with a firm which has contracts with or does business with the District; or

May reasonably be perceived by members of the public as a conflict of interest or otherwise
discredits public service. 

8. 3. 1 An employee who chooses to have an additional job, contractual commitment or self - 

employment, may do so provided he /she obtains prior approval from his /her supervisor and the Executive
Director. Any employee engaged in outside employment which conflicts with the requirements of this policy
may be required to resign from such outside employment or be terminated, if the employee refuses to
resign. 

8. 3. 2 Any outside employment that could potentially interfere with emergency call -out situations must
be reported to the employee's supervisor. If, after accepting outside employment, situations arise which
could interfere with the employee' s job, the employee needs to immediately report those situations to
his /her Supervisor. 

8. 4 Gifts and Gratuities

Employees may not accept any gift or gratuity from any vendor or agent with whom the District transacts
business. Employees may not use their official position or accept gifts and gratuities for personal gain. An
occasional lunch or coffee is not considered a " gift." 

8. 5 Other Conflicts of Interest

Except upon approval of the Executive Director, District employees may not sell or barter anything to the
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 24
75



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

District or to a contractor supplying the District, or make any contract with the District or purchase anything
from the District other than those things which the District offers generally to the public, such as, but not
limited to, services, and then only on the same terms as are offered to the public, unless an invitation to
submit sealed bids is published and the District accepts the sealed bid which is most advantageous to the

District. 

8. 6 Political Activities

District employees may participate in political or partisan activities of their choosing provided that District
resources and property are not utilized, and the activity does not adversely affect the responsibilities of the
employees in their positions. 

8. 6. 1 Employees may not campaign on District time or in a District uniform or while representing the
District in any way. 
8. 6. 2 Employees may not allow others to use District facilities or funds for political activities. 

8. 6. 3 Any District employee who meets with or may be observed by the public or otherwise
represents the District to the public while performing his /her regular duties may not wear or display any
button, badge or sticker relevant to any candidate or ballot issue during working hours. Employees shall
not solicit for a contribution for a partisan political cause on District property or District time. 

8. 6. 4 Employees who file for election to public office in the District, may be required to take a leave
of absence without pay during the campaign or be terminated from District employment upon election
where said office may, in the District' s sole judgment, create an appearance of impropriety or a conflict of
interest. 

8. 7 No Smoking
For health and safety considerations, and in accord with State law and District policy, the District prohibits
smoking by employees in all District facilities, including District -owned buildings, vehicles, and offices or other
facilities rented or leased by the District, including individual employee offices. Employees may smoke
outside only in designated smoking areas at least 25 feet from any door or ventilation equipment. Employees
using the smoking area must keep it neat and clean and pick up trash and cigarette butts. 

8. 8 Use of District Equipment

Use of District phones for local personal phone calls should be kept to a minimum; long distance personal
use is prohibited. Other District equipment should be used by employees for official District business only. 

8. 8. 1 An employee' s misuse of District services, telephones, equipment or supplies can result in

disciplinary action, including possible termination. 

8. 8.2 Certain job assignments may require that employees furnish personal equipment. If an
employee is required to furnish any items, his /her supervisor will provide a list of the items needed. The
District is not responsible for lost or stolen personal property, so employees should be careful to secure
such equipment, as well as any money or valuables, they have in the work place. 

8. 9 Non - Solicitation

It is the District's desire to conduct its operations in an orderly and efficient manner. The District believes
its employees and the public should have the opportunity to work and receive District services without
interference from persons who are pursuing a purpose not related to the District's normal business. 

8. 9. 1 The District does not allow non - employees to come onto District property or buildings to solicit
employees or other members of the public or to distribute literature or other materials for any purpose at
any time. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 25
76



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
111111111111111111111 11911111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

8. 9. 2 Employees are prohibited from soliciting or distributing any form of non -work related literature
or other materials during work time or in work areas. For this purpose, working time means time during
which either the soliciting employees or the employees who are the object of the solicitation are expected
to be actively engaged in their assigned work. Work areas include the employee dressing room. 

8. 10 Employment of Relatives

Relatives will not be hired if such employment would result in one relative supervising another directly; auditing
the work of another; or otherwise working in a relationship that would create actual or perceived conflicts of
interest or favoritism. If one employee becomes related to another employee through marriage and this

results in a prohibited employment relationship, one of the employees must resign or transfer. The Executive
Director shall consult with the affected employees and allow them to decide which one of them will resign, 

prior to taking final action. 

Relative" is defined as any family relationship resulting from birth, marriage or adoption, as well as any
person cohabiting with another employee. 

8. 11 Bulletin Boards

Information of special interest to all employees is posted regularly on the District bulletin boards. Employees
may not post any information on these bulletin boards without the prior authorization of the Executive
Director or one of the Managers. Employees are urged to check the bulletin board frequently, as they are
expected to be aware of its posted contents. 

8. 12 Employee Parking
Employees are requested to be courteous, watch vehicle doors, and drive safely in District parking lots. 
Employees are asked not to park in the spaces facing the front entrance of the building as these are
reserved for pool patrons. The District assumes no responsibility for vehicles or their contents in these
parking areas. 

8. 13 Personal Property
Employees may bring and use their personal property ( i. e. pictures, awards, knick- knacks, etc.) at work; 
however, by bringing such items to work the employee assumes all risk of loss due to theft, breakage, or any
other type of damage to such property. Personal items that may be offensive to others, including items that
may violate the District' s harassment or discrimination policies, may not be brought into the workplace. 

8. 14 Computer Usage and Privacy
The District regards desks, computers, file cabinets, furniture, and other work spaces as the District's

property, and reserves the right to inspect those locations if, in its sole discretion, it determines that there is a
security, health, or other business reason to do so. This includes oral or written communications made using
District equipment or supplies such as communications stored or made on District computers, cell phones, 

telephone systems, E -mail or voice mail. 

8. 14. 1 Computer correspondence, E -mail or other documents or information stored in the computer

used by an employee are not private or confidential. Any correspondence or other documents on a
District owned computer or system must be available to the public in accordance with the Public

Disclosure Act Chapter 42.56 RCW. Even after correspondence or documents have been deleted, it is

still possible to retrieve and make them publicly available. Also, all messages or other computer
documents are the District' s records and are the property of the District. The District reserves the right to
read, use and disclose computer correspondence or other documents or messages. For these reasons, 

employees should not use the computer system for any information considered personal or private. 

8. 14.2 When using the District's computer system, employees are using District property. As a result, 
any documents, comments and use of the District's computer system must be appropriate to the District's
business activities. 

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 26
77



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Because E -mail is a business communications tool, all E -mail messages should be business -like and

professional in tone and content. Obscene, offensive, illegal, or unprofessional communication through E- 

mail is forbidden. This includes, but is not limited to: 

obscene, profane, abusive, or threatening language or graphic representations; 

statements, jokes or graphic representations that may be construed as discriminatory or offensive
by reference to race, national origin, gender, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, or other
legally protected criteria; 
reference to or discussion of any sexual acts, sexual relationships, dates, dating, or any personal
relationships; 

communications that violate the personal privacy of, or are disrespectful of, any individual; and

communications in furtherance of any illegal activity, including, but not limited to, " football pools" 

and other forms of illegal gambling. 

8. 15 Contact with News Media

The Executive Director is responsible for all official contacts with the news media during working hours, 
including answering of questions from the media before or after any event or emergency. The Executive
Director may designate specific employees to give out procedural, factual or historical information on
particular subjects on a case by case basis. 

8. 16 Safety
The District endeavors to use reasonable efforts to provide a safe working environment which protects
employees and the public from injury. Every employee is responsible for maintaining a safe work environment
and following the District's safety rules. Each employee is expected to promptly report all unsafe or potentially
hazardous conditions to his /her supervisor. The District will endeavor to remedy problems as quickly as
possible. 

8. 16. 1 In case of an accident involving a personal injury or property damage, regardless of how
serious, employees need to immediately notify their supervisor. 

8. 16. 2 Employees should exercise caution in the performance of duties and shall follow and adhere

to published safety regulations and controls. If a District vehicle or mobile equipment is involved in an

accident within the District limits, the Police Department or Sherriff's Office should be promptly notified, 
and an accident report form should be completed. 

8. 17 Suggestions

All employees are encouraged to make suggestions which will improve the efficiency of District operations or
employee job satisfaction. Even ideas for other departments are encouraged. Suggestions may be written or
verbally given to the employee' s supervisor at any time. The supervisor will then discuss the idea with the
appropriate person or group and the Executive Director. 

8. 18 Dispute Resolution Procedures

The District recognizes that sometimes situations arise in which an employee feels that he /she has not been

treated fairly or in accordance with District rules and procedures. For this reason the District provides its
employees with procedures for resolving disputes. 

Step 1: An employee should first try to resolve any problem or complaint with his /her direct supervisor. 
The supervisor should respond to the employee, in writing, within five to seven working days after meeting
with him /her, if possible. 

Step 2: If the employee is not satisfied with the response from his /her Supervisor, the employee may
submit the problem, in writing, to next level supervisor within ten working days after receiving their direct

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 27
78



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures

supervisor's response. The written complaint must contain, at a minimum: 

A description of the problem; 

A specific practice, guideline, or procedure, which the employee believes, has been

misapplied; 

The date of the circumstances leading to the complaint or the date when the employee first
became aware of those circumstances; 

The remedy sought by the employee to resolve the dispute. 

Step 3: The Manager or Executive Director may meet with the parties, either individually or together, and
will endeavor to respond in writing to the aggrieved employee within ten working days of any such
meeting, if possible. Such determination will be final and binding. 

8. 19 Litigation

From time -to -time the District may be involved in legal actions. The only persons authorized to receive legal
summons and lawsuit filings for the District are the Executive Director, Board President and the Clerk of the

Board of Commissioners during business hours, and the Executive Director or Board President or Clerk of
the Board upon receipt of the summons or lawsuit are responsible for promptly notifying the District' s
Attorney and the District' s insurance carrier. 

No other persons or employees are authorized or allowed to accept service on behalf of the District. Any
unauthorized person should so advise the process server. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page: 28
79



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 9: Whistleblowing

9. Whistleblowing Policy
The District ( 1) encourages reporting by its employees of improper governmental action taken by District
officers or employees and ( 2) protects District employees who have reported improper governmental actions

in accordance with the District' s policies and procedures. 

9. 1 Definition of Improper Governmental Action

Any action by a District officer or employee: 
That is undertaken in the performance of the officer's or employee's official duties, whether or not the

action is within the scope of the employee' s employment; and

That ( 1) is in violation of any federal state, or local law or rule, ( 2) is an abuse of authority, (3) is of
substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety or (4) is a gross waste of public funds. 

Improper governmental action does not include personnel actions, including employee grievances, 
complaints, appointments, promotions, transfers, assignments, reassignments, reinstatements, restorations, 

re- employments, performance evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissals, suspensions, demotions, or
reprimands. 

9. 2 Procedures for Reporting
District employees who become aware of improper governmental actions should first raise the issue with

their supervisor. If requested by the supervisor, the employee shall submit a written report to the supervisor, 
or to some person designated by the supervisor, stating in detail the basis for the employee' s belief that an
improper governmental action has occurred. Where the employee reasonably believes the improper
governmental action involves his or her supervisor, the employee may raise the issue directly with the
Executive Director. If the employee reasonably believes the improper governmental action involves the
Executive Director, the employee may raise the issue directly with the President of the Board of
Commissioners. 

In the case of an emergency, where the employee believes that damage to persons or property may result if
action is not taken immediately, the employee may report the improper governmental action directly to the
appropriate government agency with responsibility for investigating the improper action. Emergency means a
circumstance that, if not immediately changed, may cause injury or damage to persons or property. 

The supervisor and the Executive Director, as the case may be, will endeavor to take prompt action to assist
the District in properly investigating the report of improper governmental action. District officers and

employees involved in the investigation are required to keep the identity of reporting employees confidential
to the extent possible under law, unless the employee authorizes the disclosure of his or her identity in
writing. After an investigation has been completed, the employee reporting the improper governmental
action should be advised of a summary of the results of the investigation, except that personnel actions
taken as a result of the investigation may be kept confidential. 

District employees may report information about improper governmental action directly to the appropriate
government agency with responsibility for investigating the improper action if the District employee
reasonably believes that an adequate investigation was not undertaken by the District to determine whether
an improper governmental action occurred, or that insufficient action has been taken by the District to
address the improper governmental action or that for other reasons the improper governmental action is

likely to reoccur. A list of governmental agencies to whom the employee may wish to report is attached as
Appendix A to this handbook. 

District employees who fail to make a good -faith attempt to follow the District' s procedures in reporting
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 29
80



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

improper governmental action do not receive the protections provided by the District in these procedures. 

9. 3 Protections Against Retaliatory Actions
District officials and employees are prohibited from taking retaliatory action against a District employee
because he or she has in good faith reported an improper governmental action in accordance with these

policies and procedures. 

Retaliatory action means any adverse change in the terms and conditions of a District's employee' s
employment. 

Employees who believe that they have been retaliated against for reporting an improper governmental action
should advise the Executive Director. The Executive Director will endeavor to take appropriate action to

investigate and address complaints of retaliation. 

If the Executive Director does not satisfactorily resolve a District employee's complaint that he or she has
been retaliated against in violation of this policy, the employee may obtain protection under this policy and
pursuant to state law by providing a written notice within 30 days after the occurrence of the alleged
retaliatory action to the District Board of Commissioners that: 

a) specifies the alleged retaliatory action and
b) specifies the relief requested. 

District employees are required to provide a copy of their written notice to the Executive Director. The
District will endeavor to respond within 30 days to the charge of retaliatory action. 

After receiving either the response of the District or 30 days after the delivery of the charge to the District, the
District employee may request a hearing before a state administrative law judge to establish that a retaliatory
action occurred and to obtain appropriate relief provided by law. An employee seeking a hearing shall
deliver the request for hearing to the Executive Director within the earlier of either 15 days of delivery of the
District's response to the charge of retaliatory action, or 45 days of delivery of the charge of retaliation to the
District for response. 

Upon receipt of request for hearing, the District may apply, within five working days, to the State Office of
Administrative Hearings for an adjudicative proceeding before an administrative law judge: 

Office of Administrative Hearings

PO Box 42489

Olympia, WA 98504 -2489

360) 753 -2531 ( SHS) 

800) 583 -8271 ( Toll -free) 

360) 586 -6563 ( Fax) 

The District will consider any recommendations provided by the administrative law judge that the retaliator be
suspended with or without pay, or dismissed. 

9. 4 Responsibilities

The Executive Director is responsible for implementing the District's policies and procedures ( 1) for reporting
improper governmental action and ( 2) for protecting employees against retaliatory actions. This includes
ensuring that this policy and these procedures ( 1) are posted where employees will have reasonable access
to them, ( 2) are made available to any employee upon request, and ( 3) are provided to all newly -hired
employees. Supervisors are responsible for ensuring the procedures are implemented within their areas of
responsibility. Violations of this policy and these procedures may result in appropriate disciplinary action, 
including possible termination. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 30
81



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Part 10: Discipline, Termination & Rules of Conduct

10. Discipline, Termination & Rules of Conduct Policy
All employees are expected to exercise good judgment, loyalty, common sense, dedication, and courtesy
in the performance of their duties. The primary mission of every employee is to provide courteous, orderly, 
efficient, and economic delivery of services to the customers of the District. 

10. 1 Discipline

Acts, errors, or omissions which, in the District's sole judgment, discredit the public service, violate District

policies or practices, or impair the provision of orderly services to the citizens of the District may result in
discipline, including possible termination. 

10. 1. 1 The Executive Director and supervisors have full discretion and authority to impose
disciplinary action in accordance with District policies and the circumstances of the particular case. 

10. 1. 2 Unless otherwise specified by resolution or a written employment contract, all employees are
employed on an at -will basis. While the District recognizes the benefit in some cases of using
progressive discipline, the need for disciplinary action is usually evaluated on a case -by -case basis and
the District is not required or obligated to use progressive discipline before imposing a particular type of
disciplinary sanction, including possible termination. 

10. 1. 3 In the event that discipline is necessary, any or all of the following types of disciplinary
actions may be used, depending on the particular situation: 

10. 1. 3. 1 Verbal Warning: A verbal warning is a counseling session between the employee's supervisor
and the employee on the subject of the employee's conduct and performance, or his /her failure to observe

a guideline, rule, regulation, or administrative instruction. It is intended to increase an employee's

efficiency and value to the District by changing the employee' s conduct, attitude, habits, or work methods. 
Following the counseling session the supervisor should document the verbal warning. 

10. 1. 3. 2 Reprimand: A reprimand is a formal written disciplinary action for misconduct, inadequate
performance, or repeated lesser infractions. Written reprimands are placed in the employee' s personnel

file. Written warnings should include: 

A statement of the facts; 

A statement of the discipline being given, if any; 
If appropriate, the employee' s explanation and reason for the violation; 

The required corrective action on the part of the employee; 

If appropriate, a written and definite period of disciplinary probation during which the
employee must clearly demonstrate improvement; and

A statement indicating further disciplinary action, up to and including termination, may
follow if correction is not achieved. 

The Reprimand should be signed by the employee' s direct supervisor, the employee and the District
Supervisor involved. Copies of written reprimands should be forwarded to the Executive Director. After

review with the employee, a copy of the written warning should to be given to the employee and a copy
should be placed in the employee' s personnel file. 

10. 1. 3. 3 Suspension: A suspension is a temporary, unpaid absence from duty which may be
imposed as a penalty for significant misconduct or repeated lesser infractions. A suspension is a severe
disciplinary action which is made part of the employee' s permanent record. In each case of disciplinary
suspension, a written memo should be prepared indicating: 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 31
82



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

The event or events which lead to the suspension; 

The duration of suspension; 

A statement indicating required corrective action on the part of the employee; 
If appropriate, the employee's explanation or comment; and

A statement indicating that it is a " final warning" and further indicating that the employee will be
discharged upon the occurrence of another infraction or unless corrective action is taken within

the stated time. 

The Suspension may be signed by the employee and any other person who may be present at the
discussion. The Suspension should be signed by the employee' s supervisor and a copy forwarded to the
Executive Director. After review with the employee, a copy of this memo should be given to the employee, 
and a copy should be entered into the employee' s personnel file. 

Suspensions with pay, where the employee is placed on administrative leave, may be utilized by the
District pending the results of an investigation or disciplinary action. 

10. 2 Termination

When a supervisor feels that the nature of a violation warrants termination, or if the termination is a result of

the disciplinary procedure where the desired corrective action was not achieved, the supervisor should
prepare a written report to his /her supervisor and the Executive Director. The written report should include: 

The reason( s) for the termination; 

Information on any previous warnings or disciplinary actions that may be relevant; 
A brief summary of the employee' s past work record and length of employment with the District; 
and

Any other relevant information. 

10. 2. 1 In certain circumstances, before a final decision is made regarding a possible termination or
suspension without pay, the District may convene a pre- termination meeting. 

10. 2. 1. 1 In the event the District convenes a pre- termination meeting, the employee will be notified of
the reason for the pending termination and given a brief summary of the District' s evidence, if any. 

10. 2. 1. 2 Usually, the employee should be given an opportunity to respond to the charges, either orally
or in writing, and to explain why the District should not go ahead with the termination. 

10. 2. 1. 3 Although the District's explanation of its evidence should be sufficient to inform the employee

of the basis for termination, this procedure should not be construed to limit the District at any
subsequent hearing or proceeding from presenting a more detailed and complete case, including the
presentation of witnesses and /or documents not introduced at the pre- termination meeting. 

10. 3 Rules of Conduct

In the interest of the District and the public, it is desirable, whether off -duty or on -duty, that an employee' s
conduct reflect favorably on the employee, his /her fellow employees and the District. Off -duty misconduct
may result in discipline when it renders an employee less capable of performing his /her duties and
responsibilities, or when it reflects unfavorably upon an employee' s continuing qualifications for employment. 

10. 3. 1 The District places as few restraints on employee personal conduct as possible. The District

relies on each employee' s good judgment and sense of responsibility as the principal source of guidance
for conducting day -to -day duties and responsibilities. However, for the protection of the District's business

interests and other employees, certain rules of conduct have been established. The rules are formalized

here for each employee' s information and to minimize the likelihood of any employee, through
misunderstanding or otherwise, becoming subject to disciplinary action. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 32
83



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

10. 3. 2 These rules of conduct do not change an employee' s status as an at -will employee, nor do they
guarantee or imply progressive discipline will be used when the District determines discipline is warranted. 

10. 3. 3 The following is a partial list of offenses that may lead to discipline, up to and including termination. 
Theft, misappropriation or removal of District property or the property of employees, clients
or members of the public; 

Material falsification of any application for employment or any report, record, time record or any
other District records; 

Soliciting and /or accepting payment, gifts or any item of value for services performed during
the regular workday while working for the District; 
Material alteration, destruction or waste of District property, facilities, records or
equipment, wherever located or the destruction of another employee' s property; 
Violation of the substance abuse, alcohol or drug policies; 
Giving or taking a bribe of any nature as inducement for obtaining or retaining a job or position; 
Disorderly conduct, fighting or insubordination. Insubordination includes, but is not limited

to: 

o Neglect of duty or refusal or failure to obey reasonable orders or instructions in the line of duty; 
o Use of abusive, insulting or obscene language to any supervisor or other employee. 

Threatening, intimidating, coercing or interfering with supervisors or other employees; 
Deliberate attempts to injure another employee or fighting on District property; 
Sleeping during work hours; 
Unauthorized possession of firearms, explosives or any dangerous weapons while
performing District work; 
Participating in an unauthorized work stoppage or slowdown; 
Recklessness resulting in a serious accident while on duty; 
Workplace harassment or other unlawful discrimination directed toward another employee

or other individual in the workplace; 

Use of District property or time for personal financial gain; 
Ignoring safety rules or common safety practices or contributing to unsanitary or unsafe working
conditions; 

Failure to report occupational injuries or accidents promptly to the employee' s supervisor; 
Engaging in activities other than assigned work during working hours and /or while operating
District equipment, without approval in advance by the employee' s supervisor; 
Acting in an insulting, rude or insolent manner towards any citizen, employee or other person
while working for the District, or while operating District equipment or on District premises; 
Failure to exercise the care and attention to one' s work as required by the
circumstances; 

Unexcused or excessive absences, or tardiness; 

Leaving work before the end of the shift or not being ready to begin work at the start of the shift
or working overtime without permission from the employee' s supervisor; 
Loafing or spending unnecessary time away from the job; 
Unauthorized possession or use of any District property, equipment or materials; 
Violation of any District Policy or Procedure. 

10. 3. 4 These are only samples of the types of conduct that may result in disciplinary action. These
rules of conduct do not change an employee' s status as an at -will employee, nor do they guarantee or
imply progressive discipline will be used when the District determines discipline is warranted. 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 33
84



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Employee Handbook Policies & Procedures
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Employee Handbook Receipt and Acknowledgement

This confirms that I: 
Employee' s Name Printed

have received and read the District's Personnel policies dated / / , and

understand and agree that these policies are not an agreement or contract

for employment; and

understand that no one in the District has the authority to enter into any agreement for
employment for a specified period of time or to make other representations or

agreements inconsistent with these policies unless it is in writing signed by an authorized
District representative; and

understand that the policies and procedures contained may be revised and updated by
the District from time to time; and

understand that these policies revoke and supersede any prior handbooks, statements of
employment policies, guidelines and procedures, or employment manuals, handbooks, or

other documents issued by the District; and

Understand that, unless otherwise provided by a law, my employment with the District is
at -will. 

Employee's Signature Date

Remove this receipt from the handbook and fill in the Human Resource Employee file

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Draft Date: 10/ 16/2014 Page 34
85



86



000001 IN iliM

5. C. 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board of Commissioners

FROM: Ellen Gengler, Chair Budget Committee

DATE: October 15, 2014

SUBJECT: 2014 Transitional Budget

ISSUE

Present updated Transitional Budget

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The 2014 adopted budget would be increased by $ 71, 250. 

BACKGROUND

The Transitional Budget reflects the estimated costs that the TPMPD will incur during the next few
months as it moves to a self- operated model. 

DISCUSSION

As outlined in the September 18, 2014 Budget Committee Overview, the Budget Committee is

presenting the Transitional Budget (worst case scenario) for approval. Below are explanations from
the Budget Committee regarding the transitional expenditures. 

1. Executive Director: $7, 500 was recommended to compensate the ED for the additional

time and duties required to transition the TPMPD from city operated and administered to
self- operated model. The transition time period was defined as August — February. 

2. Aquatics Manager: $12, 000 to bring the Aquatics Manager in a PT capacity for October
and November, and FT in December (based on highest end of salary range $ 55K and
includes the 15% optional benefits — worst case scenario) 

3. Aquatics Asst Manager: $3,000 to bring in Asst Manager as FTE for the last part of
December (based on highest end of salary range $ 50K and includes the 15% optional

benefits— worst case scenario) 

4. HR Admin / Training: $2, 000 has been budgeted to training employees on the new
systems (which needs to be done prior to January 1, 2015.) Additional monies were set

aside for possible review of HR materials. 

5. Bookkeeper: $2,200 has been budgeted for contracting services to support the financial
activities of the TPMPD. The Budget Committee has interviewed several service providers

and are waiting for cost information with recommendations provided to the Board in
November. 

6. CPA: $ 1, 000 has been budgeted for a CPA during this transitional period. Since the
financial services are still being considered, this amount is a best guess. 

7. IT: $ 31, 950 has been set aside for IT systems including software, hardware, installation, 
phones, internet and consulting. At the last TPMPD meeting, the IT Committee requested

15, 000 for consultant fees. 

C: \Users \Executive Director\ Documents \MPD \2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014 \5. c. Budget Committee memo on 2014 Transitional Budget.docx

87



INFORMATIONAL MEMO

MPD — Consultant Presentation — KJ Design

Page 2 — September 12, 2013

8. Office Furniture: $3,000 has been budgeted for desks, chairs and other office furniture

like file cabinets. The actual needs will be determined by the ED. 
9. Office Supplies: $500 budgeted for office supplies, needs to be determined by the ED. 
10. Safety Supplies — Mannequins: Mannequins are used for safety training and are

essential and necessary. $ 1, 000 has been budgeted to replace mannequins that will be

going back to Parks & Rec. 

11. Hand Tools: In the asset list provided by the City to the TPMPD hand tools were listed as
items that will be returned to Parks & Rec. $500 was budgeted to replace these tools used

for regular maintenance at the pool. 

12. Legal: $ 5,000 has been budgeted to cover the legal costs accrued due to the transition. 

The ED has been proactive in using free legal services by WCIA ( insurance carrier) and
additional efforts should be taken to control the use of legal to what is absolutely
necessary. 

13. Repairs & Maintenance: $ 1, 000 has been budgeted for any incidental repairs and
maintenance issues that may come up. 

14. NRPA Membership: $600 membership was paid in July of 2014. 

In addition, the Budget Committee recommends that the Board allow the Executive Director the

authorization to make purchases under $5, 000 for items and services specified in the Transitional

Budget. 

RECOMMENDATION

The Budget Committee recommends that the Commission propose a motion to approve the

Transitional Budget. 

The Budget Committee recommends that the Commission propose a motion to grant the

Executive Director the authority to make purchases under $5, 000 for items and services
specified in the Transitional Budget. 

ATTACHMENTS

Transitional Budget Update 10/ 12/2014. 

KJ Design Consultant Presentation 2013

88



Self- 
Operating
Estimated
Transition
Expenses (
Worst
Case
Scenario) 
Rev.
10 -

12 -
14

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Total

Executive
Director

Aquatics
Manager (
0.

5FTE
1/2

Oct., 

0.

75
FTE
Nov., 

FTE
Dec.) Aquatics

Assistant
Manager (
s) (

FTE
1/2

Dec.) 

HR
Admin /
Training

Bookkeeper CPA IT: 

POS
system (
annual

fee) 

IT: 

Computers (
3

units) 

IT: 

Office
Software (
3

seats) 

IT: 

Copier
IT: 

Printer
IT: 

Phone
system (
4
@$

150
each

telephones, 

3
@$

50
per

line
monthly
charge) 

IT: 

Internet (
Service & 
Setup) 

IT: 

Server
IT: 

Consultant
IT
TOTAL Office

Furniture
Office
Supplies

Safety
Supplies — 
Mannequins

Hand
Tools

Legal Repairs & 
Maintenance

NRPA
membership

TOTAL

600.
00

3,

750.
00

3,

750.
00 $

7,

500.
00

1,

500.
00 $

4,

500.
00 $

6,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

2,

000.
00

1,

200.
00 $

1,

000.
00

1,

000.
00

5,

000.
00

2,

000.
00

1,

000.
00

1,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

500.
00

5,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

200.
00

750.
00

500.
00

1,

000.
00

9,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

500.
00

1,

000.
00

500.
00

1,

000.
00 $

2,

000.
00 $

2,

000.
00

1,

000.
00

12,
000.
00

3,

000.
00

2,

000.
00

2,

200.
00

1,

000.
00

5,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

3,

000.
00

200.
00

750.
00

500.
00

1,

500.
00

15,

000.
00

31,
950.
00

3,

000.
00

500.
00

1,

000.
00

500.
00

5,

000.
00

1,

000.
00

600.
00

71,
250.
00

89



Oa) 



INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board

FROM: Ellen Gengler, TPMPD Budget Committee Chair

DATE: October 14, 2014

SUBJECT: Public Hearing 2015 Budget

ISSUE

Public hearing of the proposed 2015 operating budget. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The TPMPD Board must adopt the 2015 budget by Dec. 31, 2014. 

BACKGROUND

A Budget Committee was formed in August, 2014 to create and recommend both a Transitional

2014 budget and a 2015 budget. 

DISCUSSION

The proposed 2015 budget includes revenues and expenditures for normal operations. Information

from the proposed transitional budget is incorporated into the proposed 2015 budget document. 

The Budget Committee is using a conservative model in their assumptions while creating the 2015
budget recommendation. The assumptions the Budget Committee will be including are as follows: 

Program Revenues in 2014 are estimated to be 15% below budget, therefore conservative

2015 revenue forecasts will keep those revenues at the 2014 budgeted level. 
Property Tax Levy revenue is forecasted to increase by 1% 
Salaried employee expenses are forecasted to decrease due to the new pay scale as a self
operated entity. 
A State Audit is forecasted in 2015. 

Reserve balance of 15% achieved for the 2015 Budget. 

The Budget Committee is changing the TPMPD budget format to include more line items in an
effort to better track revenue and expenses. 

Any changes from the October 22, 2014 regular meeting will be incorporated into the resolution
prior to adoption. 

RECOMMENDATION

The Board is being asked to consider the 2015 Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District budget
ordinance at the October 22, 2014 regular board meeting and adopt the budget at either the
November 13, 2014 special meeting or at the December 11, 2014 special meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS

Proposed 2015 Budget

91



92



Tukwila
Pool
Metropolitan
Park
District
2015
BUDGET

Page
1

93

2013
BUDGET

2013
ACTUAL

2014
BUDGET

2014
EST. 

2015
BUDGET

REVENUE

TAX
REVENUE

680,
186

681,
288

704,
395

704,
395

718,

483

2015
Retail

RETAIL
SALES

Sales include

PASSES

180,
000

180,
752

191,
800

34,
000

36,

048

excise
tax

collected

GENERAL
ADMISSION

25,
500

33,

931

SPECIAL
EVENTS & 
CAMPS

1,

672

RENTALS
SHORT
TERM

18,
000

21,

900

SALE
OF
SWIM
MERCHANDISE

1,

116

2,

000

1,

800

2,

190

LOCKERS

1,

500

1,

643

TOTAL
RETAIL
SALES

80,
800

97,

384

NON
RETAIL
SALES

SWIM
LESSONS

110,
500

124,

092

EX. 

CLASSES

2,

273

RENTALS
LONG
TERM

31,

000

50,
723

54,
510

20,
000

30,

000

SALE
OF
MERCHANDISE (
VENDING) 

1,

558

1,

200

1,

000

TOTAL
NON
RETAIL
SALES

131,
700

157,

365

New
focus
on

fundraising & sponsors

DONATIONS /
FUNDRAISING /
SPONSORSHIP

2,

963

1,

000

100

10,

000

GRANTS & 
REBATES

3,

059

30,
000

10,
000

INTEREST

1,

200

MISCELLANEOUS

38,
066

250,
081

200

TOTAL
REVENUE

929,
252

1,

171,
540

983,
705

926,
795

984,

432

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATION /
OVERHEAD

GROUND
LEASE

10,
950

10,
950

10,
950

10,
950

10,

950

LEGAL
FEES

6,

240

12,
013

14,
000

25,
000

20,

000

WICA
INSURANCE

9,

912

8,

672

11,

000

10,
185

11,

000

BOOKKEEPING

3,

200

16,

000

CPA

2,

000

HR
SERVICES

5,

000

BANK
CHARGES

300

STATE
AUDITOR

7,

500

PUBLIC
RECORDS/
TRANSCRIPTION

6,

000

MEETING
EXPENSES

1,

500

MISC. 
CONTRACTED
PROF. 
SERVICES

100

8,

638

4,

250

2,

000

INTERLOCAL
CONTRACT

90,
000

90,
000

79,
200

65,
000

TOTAL
ADMINISTRATION /
OVERHEAD

117,
202

130,
273

115,
150

118,
585

82,

250

Page
1

93



Tukwila
Pool
Metropolitan
Park
District
2015
BUDGET

Page
2

94

2013
BUDGET

2013
ACTUAL

2014
BUDGET

2014
EST. 

2015
BUDGET

CAPITAL/ 
DEBT & 

RESERVE
SERVICES

CITY
BRIDGE
LOAN
PAYMENT

88,
245

80,
135

121,
458

121,
458

121,

458

BOND
PAYMENT

85,
605

113,
130

113,
130

113,
130

113,

130

CIP
LIFECYCLE
REPLACEMENT

50,
000

50,
000

50,

000

RESERVE (
DEMO ?) 

30,
000

30,
000

30,
000

30,
000

30,

000

TOTAL
CAPITAL /
DEBT /
RESERVE
SERVICES

203,
850

223,
265

314,
588

314,
588

314,

588

WAGES

Extra
labor not categorized. 

WAGES
LIFEGUARD

118,
000

131,
720

140,
000

170,
000

70,

0001was

WAGES
INSTRUCTOR

35,

000_
separately

WAGES
HEAD
GUARD

35,

000- 

WAGES
AQUATICS
MANAGER

141,
684

133,
827

85,
320

95,
320

50,

000

Includes
new

WAGES
ASSISTANT
AQUATICS
MANAGER(
S) 

63,
528

65,
628

50,

000

Aquatics Manager
for

4th
Quarter

WAGES
EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

45,
000

52,
500

45,

000

OVERTIME

1,

594

5,

000

2,

000

2,

000
12014

TOTAL
WAGES

259,
684

267,
141

338,
848

385,
448

287,

000

Federal
Witholding

17.

65% 

BENEFITS FICA

19,
773

20,
369

22,
005

29,
489

21,

995

8,

610

3% 

UNEMPLOYMENT

435% 

DEPT. 
L &

I

14,
694

15,
740

18,
050

20,
844

12,

485

CAFETERIA
PLAN /
BENEFITS

47,
308

42,
945

48,
707

50,
395

21,

750

J150/ 

TOTAL
BENEFITS

81,

775

79,
054

88,
762

100,
728

64,

840

EMPLOYEE
SUPPORT /
EQUIPMENT

UNIFORMS

3,

000

LIFEGUARD
SUPPLIES

1,

000

1,

000

TOTAL
EMPLOYEE
SUPPORT /
EQUIPMENT

4,

000

PROGRAM
SUPPLIES

SWIM
CLASS
SUPPLIES

1,

500

EXERCISE
CLASS
SUPPLIES

500

SPECIAL
EVENT /
CAMP
SUPPLIES

500

TOTAL
PROGRAM
SUPPLIES

2,

500

MAINTENANCE /
REPAIR
SUPPLIES

CHEMICALS

6,

500

6,

720

7,

375

8,

000

8,

000

JANITORIAL
SUPPLIES

3,

000

MAINTENANCE
SUPPLIES

1,

500

SMALL
TOOLS /
REPAIR
SUPPLIES

500

500

TOTAL
MAINTENANCE
REPAIR
SUPPLIES

6,

500

6,

720

7,

375

8,

500

13,

000

Page
2

94



Tukwila
Pool
Metropolitan
Park
District
2015
BUDGET

Page
3

95

2013
BUDGET

2013
ACTUAL

2014
BUDGET

2014
EST. 

2015
BUDGET

OFFICE
SUPPLIES /
EQUIPMENT

OFFICE
SUPPLIES

8,

679

14,
521

10,
000

14,
000

3,

000

OFFICE
FURNITURE

3,

000

500

COMPUTER
SUPPLIES

6,

000

1,

000

COMPUTER
SERVICES

15,
000

1,

000

PRINTING /
COPIER
SUPPLIES

3,

200

1,

000

SOFTWARE /
POS

11,

000

2,

000

TOTAL
OFFICE
SUPPLIES

8,

679

14,
521

10,
000

52,
200

8,

500

RESALE
SUPPLIES

MERCHANDISE /
VENDING

2,

666

1,

500

1,

200

500

SWIM
MERCHANDISE

1,

000

TOTAL
RESALE
SUPPLIES

2,

666

1,

500

1,

200

1,

500

COMMUNICATIONS /
PUBLIC
OUTREACH

TELEPHONE

4,

000

2,

096

2,

200

3,

900

4,

200

POSTAGE /
MAILING

500

INTERNET/
WEBSITE /
SERVER

2,

000

6,

000

ADVERTISING

4,

000

7,

901

10,
000

10,
000

10,

000

SCHOLARSHIPS
USED

7,

586

10,
000

10,
000

10,

000

TOTAL
COMMUNICATIONS /
PUBLIC
OUTREACH

8,

000

17,
583

22,
200

25,
900

30,

700

MEMBERSHIP/
TRAVEL/
TRAINING

ADMINISTRATION
MEMBERSHIP & 
DUES

600

600

AQUATICS
MEMBERSHIP & 
DUES

500

SUBSCRIPTIONS

500

TRAVEL /
CONFERENCES

500

TRAINING

2,

000

2,

500

TOTAL
MEMBERSHIP & 
TRAVEL

2,

600

4,

600

RENTALS /
LEASES

HEAVY
EQUIPMENT

400

297

750

750

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

300

TOTAL
RENTALS /
LEASES

400

297

750

1,

050

Page
3

95



Tukwila
Pool
Metropolitan
Park
District
2015
BUDGET

Page
4

96

2013
BUDGET

2013
ACTUAL

2014
BUDGET

2014
EST. 

2015
BUDGET

REPAIRS /
MAINTENANCE
CONTRACTED

FACILITY
REPAIRS

20,
000

19,
540

20,
800

29,
655

5,

000

FACILITY
MAINTENANCE

1,

000

LANDSCAPING

2,

400

JANITORIAL

9,

600

SECURITY
SERVICES

1,

400

EQUIPMENT
MAINTENANCE

6,

000

EQUIPMENT
REPAIRS

2,

250

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

500

TOTAL
REPAIRS /
MAINTENANCE
CONTRACTED

20,
000

19,
540

20,
800

29,
655

28,

150

UTILITIES GAS

103,
120

67,
453

80,
000

72,
000

48,

000

Utilities
were

ELECTRIC

not

W

5

separately categorized

WATER

5,

905

SEWER

9,

201

SURFACE
WATER

118

GARBAGE

1,

800

TOTAL
UTILITIES

103,
120

67,
453

80,
000

72,
000

82,

089

TAXES, 
LICENSES & 
FEES

SALES / 
EXCISE
TAX

8,

448

BUSINESS
LICENSES

500

RGRL
FEE

500

ANNUAL
PERMITS

600

CREDIT
CARD
FEES

3,

400

4,

434

4,

500

4,

600

4,

800

MISCELLANEOUS

5,

000

5,

240

5,

200

5,

200

1,

000

TOTAL
TAXES, 
LICENSES & 
FEES

8,

400

9,

674

9,

700

9,

800

14,

848

TOTAL
EXPENSES

817,
610

838,
187

1,

009,
673

1,

121,
204

939,

615

Overage
from

Capital

TRANSFER
TO
FUND
633

Improvement

70,
048

Project

FUND
BALANCE

CHANGE
IN

FUND
BALANCE

111,
642

263,
305

25,
968

194,
409

44,

817

BEGINNING
FUND
BALANCE

197,
605

56,
125

432,
786

319,
430

158,

752

ENDING
FUND
BALANCE

309,
247

319,
430

406,
818

125,
021

203,

569

Page
4

96



5. E. 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board of Commissioners

FROM: Jennafer Price Cargill, TPMPD Executive Director

BY: Vicky Carlsen, City of Tukwila Deputy Finance Director

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: Public Hearing 2015 General Tax Levy and 1% Increase

ISSU E

Hearing on proposed resolutions adopting general property tax levy for 2015 by December 5, 2014
and increasing the property levy by 1%. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Approving these two resolutions will allow the TPMPD to continue collecting property tax revenue. 
Preliminary property tax collection for 2015 is estimated to be $ 739,646. 

DISCUSSION

Public Hearing is scheduled on October 22, 2014 for review of the 2015 property tax levy as required
by RCW 84. 55. 120. Two resolutions are necessary for the 2015 property tax levy. 

Resolution — General Tax Levy

This resolution sets the general tax levy amount for 2015. The Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park

District (TPMPD) was notified on October 7, 2014 that the assessed value for 2015 is projected to

be $ 4, 930,972,966. The allowable levy projected by King County and documented on the
Preliminary Levy Limit Worksheet -2014 Tax Roll is $ 739,646. However, the Resolution states a levy
amount of $ 775,000. Asking for an amount higher than the levy amount that is stated in the
preliminary Levy Worksheet gives the TPMPD room to account for changes in new construction and
an increase in utility value that could occur prior to the end of 2014. If the final allowable levy is less
than the resolution amount, King County Department of Assessments will adjust the resolution
amount to the final allowable levy amount and no further action by the Board will be required. If the

final allowable levy is more than the resolution, a revised resolution will be approved by the Board
prior to the end of the year. 

Resolution — Tax Levy Increase

This resolution increases an increase in the TPMPD regular property tax levy by 1. 00% from the

previous year and is required to receive the 1. 00% increase. The increase is exclusive of new

construction, improvements to property or increases in the value of State - assessed property. 

RECOM EN DATION

The Board is being asked to approve the resolutions adopting the general tax levy at the November
2014 Board meeting after the October 22, 2014 public hearing. 

ATTACHMENTS

A. Draft Resolution — General Tax Levy
B. Draft Resolution — Tax Levy Increase
C. Preliminary Levy Limit Worksheet -2015 Tax Roll

97



98



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Resolution No. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

TUKWILA POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT LEVYING

THE GENERAL TAXES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING

JANUARY 1, 2015, ON ALL PROPERTY BOTH REAL AND

PERSONAL WITHIN SAID DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

has considered the District's anticipated financial requirements for 2015 and the amounts

necessary and available to be raised by ad valorem taxes on real and personal property; 
and

WHEREAS, the final assessed valuation calculation has been determined; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA

POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

There shall be and hereby is levied on all real and personal property in the Tukwila
Metropolitan Park District, in King County, whose estimated assessed valuation is

4, 930,972,966, current taxes for the ensuing year commencing January 2015, in the
amount of $775,000. Including $917 in refunds. 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA POOL

METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT at a Regular Meeting thereof this day of
2014. 

ATTEST /AUTHENTICATED: 

Kate Kruller, Clerk of the Board De' Sean Quinn, President, 

Board of Commissioners

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: 

Snure Law Office, PSC, Commission Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk: 
Passed by the Commission: 
Resolution Number: 

Page 1 of 1
99



100



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Resolution No. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF

THE TUKWILA POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT, 

INCREASING THE REGULAR LEVY FROM THE PREVIOUS

YEAR, COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2015, ON ALL

PROPERTY, BOTH REAL AND PERSONAL, IN

COMPLIANCE WITH RCW 84.55. 120. 

WHEREAS, the Tukwila Metropolitan Park District has properly given notice of a public
revenue source hearing held on October 22, 2014, pursuant to RCW 84.55. 120; and

WHEREAS, the District's actual levy amount from the previous year was $707,567; and

WHEREAS, the population of the District is greater than ten thousand; and

WHEREAS, after hearing and duly considering all relevant evidence and testimony
presented, the Board of Commissioners has determined that in order to discharge its

expected expenses and obligations the Board of Commissioners has determined that it is in

the District's best interest to increase property tax revenue from the previous year, in addition
to the increase resulting from the addition of new construction and improvements to property
and any increase in the value of State - assessed property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA

METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

An increase in the regular property tax levy, is hereby authorized for the levy to be
collected in 2015 in the amount of $7,076, which is a percentage increase of 1. 00% from

the previous year. This increase is exclusive of additional revenue resulting from new
construction, improvements to property, any increase in the value of State - assessed
property, any annexations that have occurred and refunds made. 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA

METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT at a Regular Meeting thereof this day of
2014. 

ATTEST /AUTHENTICATED: 

Kate Kruller, Clerk of the Board De' Sean Quinn, President, Board of

Commissioners

Page 1 of 2
101



APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: 

Snure Law Office, PSC, Commission Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk: 
Passed by the Commission: 
Resolution Number: 

Page 2 of 2
102



uu

uuuuuu IIIIIIIIIII A

LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET - 2015 Tax Roll

TAXING DISTRICT: Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park

The following determination ofyour regular levy limit for 2015property taxes is provided by the King County
Assessorpursuant to RCW 84.55.100. 

Note 1) 

Using Limit Factor
For District Calculation of Limit Factor Levy

Using Implicit
Price Deflator

3, 516, 857

1. 0100

3, 552, 026

9, 373, 559

0

9, 373, 559

0. 14944

1, 401

3, 553,427

Levy basis for calculation: ( 2014 Limit Factor) (Note 2) 

x Limit Factor

Levy
Local new construction

Increase in utility value ( Note 3) 
Total new construction

x Last year's regular levy rate
New construction levy

Total Limit Factor Levy

3, 516,857

1. 0159

3, 572,810

9, 373,559

0

9, 373,559

0. 14944

1, 401

3, 574,211

0

3, 553,427

4, 930,972, 966

0. 72063

0

0

Annexation Levy
Omitted assessment levy (Note 4) 

Total Limit Factor Levy + new lid lifts

Regular levy assessed value less annexations
Annexation rate ( cannot exceed statutory maximum rate) 

x Annexation assessed value

Annexation Levy

0

3, 574,211

4, 930, 972, 966

0. 72485

0

0

0

3, 553,427

3, 553,427

917

3, 554, 344

Lid lifts, Refunds and Total

First year lid lifts

Limit Factor Levy
Total RCW 84. 55 levy

Relevy for prior year refunds ( Note 5) 
Total RCW 84. 55 levy + refunds

Levy Correction: Year of Error ( + or -) 

0

3, 574,211

3, 574,211

917

3, 575, 128

3, 554, 344 ALLOWABLE LEVY ( Note 6) 3, 575, 128

0. 72082

707, 567

2, 844,459

402. 01 % 

Increase Information (Note 7) 

Levy rate based on allowable levy
Last year's ACTUAL regular levy

Dollar increase over last year other than N/ C — Annex

Percent increase over last year other than N/ C — Annex

0. 72504

707, 567

2, 865,243

404.94% 

Calculation of statutory levy
Regular levy assessed value ( Note 8) 

x Maximum statutory rate
Maximum statutory levy

Omitted assessments levy
Maximum statutory levy

Limit factor needed for statutory levy

ALL YEARS SHOWN ON THIS FORM ARE THE YEARS IN WHICH THE TAX IS PAYABLE. 

Please read carefully the notes on the reverse side. 

10/ 16/ 14 11: 36 AM

LevyLimitWS.doc

4, 930, 972, 966

0. 75000

3, 698,230

0

3, 698,230

Not usable

103



Notes: 

1) Rates for fire districts and the library district are estimated at the time this worksheet is
produced. Fire district and library district rates affect the maximum allowable rate for cities
annexed to them. These rates will change, mainly in response to the actual levy requests
from the fire and library districts. Hence, affected cities may have a higher or lower
allowable levy rate than is shown here when final levy rates are calculated. 

2) This figure shows the maximum allowable levy, which may differ from any actual prior levy
if a district has levied less than its maximum in prior years. The maximum allowable levy
excludes any allowable refund levy if the maximum was based on a limit factor. The
maximum allowable levy excludes omitted assessments if the maximum was determined by
your district' s statutory rate limit. If your district passed a limit factor ordinance in the year
indicated, that limit factor would help determine the highest allowable levy. However, if the
statutory rate limit was more restrictive than your stated limit factor, the statutory rate limit is
controlling. 

3) Any increase in value in state - assessed property is considered to be new construction value
for purposes of calculating the respective limits. State - assessed property is property
belonging to inter - county utility and transportation companies ( telephone, railroad, airline
companies and the like). 

4) An omitted assessment is property value that should have been included on a prior year' s roll
but will be included on the tax roll for which this worksheet has been prepared. Omits are

assessed and taxed at the rate in effect for the year omitted (RCW 84.40.080 -085). Omitted

assessments tax is deducted from the levy maximum before calculating the levy rate for
current assessments and added back in as a current year' s receivable. 

5) Administrative refunds under RCW 84. 69.020 were removed from the levy lid by the 1981
legislature. 

6) A district is entitled to the lesser of the maximum levies determined by application of the
limit under RCW 84. 55 and the statutory rate limit. Levies may be subject to further
proration if aggregate rate limits set in Article VII of the state constitution and in RCW

84. 52. 043 are exceeded. 

7) This section is provided for your information, and to assist in preparing any Increase
Ordinance that may be required by RCW 84. 55. 120. The increase information compares the
allowable levy for the next tax year with your ACTUAL levy being collected this year. The
actual levy excludes any refund levy and expired temporary lid lifts, if applicable. New
construction, annexation and refund levies, as well as temporary lid lifts in their initial year, 
are subtracted from this year' s allowable levy before the comparison is made. 

8) Assessed valuations shown are subject to change from error corrections and appeal board

decisions recorded between the date of this worksheet andfinal levy rate determination. 

10/ 16/ 14 11: 36 AM

LevyLimitWS.doc
104



5. F. 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

TO: Tukwila Pool MPD Board of Commissioners

FROM: TPMPD Budget Committee

DATE: October 16, 2014

SUBJECT: TPMPD Treasurer and Banking authorization recommendation

ISSUE

As part of the transition to self- operating, the MPD will require a new Treasurer and a bank account

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The TPMPD will see savings of approximately $500 to $ 1000 per month over prior years. 

BACKGROUND

Resolution # 1, Section 10 authorized the City of Tukwila' s Finance Director to serve as the
Treasurer of the TPMPD. As the contract for support services with the City will be ending by
January 2015, the TPMPD has been asked to designate a new Treasurer. Resolution # 3

authorizes the City of Tukwila to open an account as US Bank on behalf of the TPMPD. 

DISCUSSION

The TPMPD Budget Committee has reviewed the available options and finds that King County
Treasurer' s Office is the best suited to perform the duties of the District Treasurer. 

Free services include: 

Accounts payable

Cash management

General ledger and reporting. 
Low cost services include: 

Participation in a King County Treasurer managed investment pool. 

In preparation for becoming self - operational, the Budget Committee has concluded that the
Executive Director should immediately open a TPMPD bank account with US Bank, naming the
President, Clerk and Executive Director as signers on the account. 

RECOMMENDATION

The Budget Committee recommends that the Board authorize the President and Clerk of the Board

to approve a new resolution revising Resolution 1, Section 10 and repealing Resolution 3 naming
King County Treasurer as the new District Treasurer and authorizing the opening of a new District
bank account at US Bank. 

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution revising Resolution 1, Section 10 and repealing Resolution 3

C: \Users \Executive Director\Docum ents \MPD \2014 Board Meetings \Oct 22 2014 \5. f. Mem o Treasurer Recomm endation. doc
105



106



Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District

Resolution No. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE

TUKWILA POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT REVISING SECTION

10 OF RESOLUTION 1 AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 3, NAMING KING

COUNTY TREASURER AS THE DISTRICT TREASURER AND

AUTHORIZING THE OPENING OF A NEW DISTRICT BANK ACCOUNT AT

US BANK. 

WHEREAS, the Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners originally
designated the City of Tukwila Finance Director as the District's Treasurer when it formed in
2011 pursuant to RCW 35.61. 180; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.61. 180, the King County Treasurer approved the
District's designation of the City of Tukwila Finance Director, subject to the requirements of a
bond from a surety company operating in the state sufficient to protect the District from loss; and

WHEREAS, the District now requires King County Treasurer to perform the services of
District Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the District will need to establish a bank account into which it can deposit

monies received by the District and from which the County Treasurer can transfer those monies
into an account established to hold the District's funds; as well as provide the service to pay
District debts as authorized by the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA POOL

METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Naming of District Treasurer. King County Treasurer is hereby named as the District
Treasurer for the Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District as of January 1, 2015. 

Opening Account. The President of the Commission and the Clerk of the Commission are

hereby immediately authorized to open a District banking account with US Bank to hold District
funds. The President of the Commission, Clerk of the Board and the Executive Director are

authorized to sign checks drawn from that account on behalf of the Commission in accordance with

the signing authority granted by the District policies. 

Reporting Requirement. The District shall receive from the District Treasurer those standard
reports provided by said treasurer. The Executive Director shall present those reports, and others
required by the Board of Commissioners, during the next immediate regular business meeting. 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TUKWILA POOL METROPOLITAN

PARK DISTRICT at a Regular Meeting thereof this day of
2014. 

ATTEST /AUTHENTICATED: 

Page 1 of 2
107



Kate Kruller, Clerk of the Board De' Sean Quinn, President, 

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: 

Brian Snure, Commission Attorney

Board of Commissioners

Filed with the Clerk: 

Passed by the Commission: 
Resolution Number: 

Page 2 of 2
108


